
 

 

 

CONCORD STATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Advanced Meeting Package 
 

Regular Meeting 

 

 
Date/Time: 

Thursday, March 14, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 

 

 

Location: 

Concord Station Clubhouse 

18636 Mentmore Blvd. 

Land O’Lakes, FL 34638 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are   

considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval, or adoption. 
 

Page 1 of 175



Concord Station Community Development District 
c/o Breeze 

1540 International Parkway, Suite 2000 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 

813-565-4663 

 
 

 

 

Board of Supervisors  
Concord Station Community Development District 
 
 

Dear Supervisors: 

 
A Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Concord Station Community Development District is 

scheduled for Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. at the Concord Station Clubhouse, 18636 

Mentmore Blvd., Land O’Lakes, FL 34638. 

 

The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 

your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The agenda items are for immediate business purposes and for the health and safety of the community. 

Staff will present any reports at the meeting.  If you have any questions, please contact me.  I look forward 

to seeing you there. 

 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Larry Krause 
Larry Krause 

District Manager 

813-565-4663 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 

Page 2 of 175



 

 

District: CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Date of Meeting: Thursday, March 14, 2024 

Time: 10:00 A.M. 

Location: Concord Station Clubhouse 

18636 Mentmore Blvd. 

Land O’Lakes, FL 34638 
 
 

Agenda 
 

For the full agenda packet, please contact Larry@breezehome.com  
 

I. Call to Order / Roll Call   

II. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual on agenda items)  

III. Administrative Items  

A. Consideration/Acceptance of the Minutes of the Concord Station CDD 

February 8, 2024 Regular Meeting  

Exhibit 1 

B. Consideration/Acceptance of the Concord Station CDD January 2024 

Unaudited Financial Statement 

Exhibit 2 

C. Ratification of Invoices  

1. Piper Fire Protection - $165.00 Exhibit 3 

2. Pasco County Sheriff - $11,066.83  Exhibit 4 

IV. Vendor & Staff Updates  

A. Deputy Update – Pasco County Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Brown  

B. District Engineer – Johnson Engineering – Phil Chang  

1. Pond Repair Proposals Exhibit 5  

a. Crosscreek Environmental: $3,850.00 Exhibit 6 

b. Site Masters of Florida:       $6,000.00 Exhibit 7 

c. Finn Outdoor:                      $6,450.00 Exhibit 8 

2. SWFWMD Inspections Exhibit 9 

C. District Counsel – Straley Robin Vericker – Vivek Babbar  

D. Field Operations Manager – BREEZE – Michael Sakellarides, LCAM  

1. Aquatics Report – Solitude – Nick Margo Exhibit 10  

a. Wetlands Service Contract – Solitude - $6,156/Yr. Exhibit 11 

Page 3 of 175

mailto:Larry@breezehome.com


 

 

b. Lake Service Renewal – Solitude - $69,900/yr. Exhibit 12 

c. Lab Service Renewal – Solitude - $3,479/yr. Exhibit 13 

2. Landscape Report – Yellowstone - Christiaan Van Helden Exhibit 14 

3. Trees Planted on CDD Property Behind 3103 Chessington Dr.  Exhibit 15 

4. Buffer Area Behind 3407 Chessington Dr. Exhibit 16 

a. Quarterly Clearings – To Be Distributed   

b. Semin-Annual Clearings - To Be Distributed   

E. Clubhouse Manager – BREEZE – Tena Merckson  

1. Review Monthly Clubhouse Report   

a. January 2024 Report  Exhibit 17 

i. Discussion: Rust Control Issues Exhibit 18 

b. Discussion: New Amenity Hours and Existing/New Events  

i. HOA – Meetings at 6 p.m. but last more than 1 Hour  

ii. Girl Scouts – Regular Meetings are Mondays  

iii. Private Events Scheduled By Rizzetta - Approved   

iv. New Private and Community Events  

2. Proposals  

a. Cleaning  

i. Catherinne ProCleaners – Amenity Center Exhibit 19 

- Option A1 – 3 Days/Week Without Gym - 

$14,040/yr. 

 

- Option A2 – 3 Days/Week With Gym - 

$15,600/yr. 

 

- Option B1 – 2 Days/Week Without Gym - 

$10,400/yr. 

 

- Option B2 – 2 Days/Week With Gym - 

$11,440/yr. 

 

- Option C1 – Summer 3D/W, Winter 2 D/W 

Without Gym - $12,730/yr. 

 

Page 4 of 175



 

 

- Option C2 – Summer 3D/W, Winter 2 D/W With 

Gym - $14,070/yr. 

 

ii. Emaids of Hernando & Pasco County – All Facilities Exhibit 20 

- 2 Days/Week With Gym - $787.80/Month or      

$9,453.60/yr. 

 

b. Amenity Center Doors – New Hours Signage  

i. Fast Signs – Changing Hours on Doors - $244.25 Exhibit 21 

c. Splash Pad Lock – DC Integrations - $1,470.00 Exhibit 22 

d. Splash Pad - Pool Decks of Tampa – Painting - $13,450 Exhibit 23 

e. Splash Pad - Pool Decks of Tampa – Color Seal/Paint - 

$8,950 

Exhibit 24 

f. Pool Repairs – Suncoast Pools – Pool Pump Seal Plate - 

$1,152.00 

Exhibit 25 

g. Pet Waste Station, 1 Station - Poop 911 - To Be Distributed  

h. Shower Tower – Pampering Plumber - $7,128.35 Exhibit 26 

F. District Manager – BREEZE – Larry Krause  

1. Discussion of Budget Workshop in April 2024  

a. Discussion Item: Bollards at Second Wellington Entrance  

b. Discussion Item: Holiday Lighting  

V.  Business Items  

A. Consideration/Acceptance of Resolution 2024-06, Setting a Spending 

Limit for the Chairman, District Manager, and Amenities Manager 

 Exhibit 27 

B. Discussion: Trash Cans in Open Fields (e.g. Tuckerton)  

C. Discussion: Overnight Parking and Signage  

D. Discussion: Clubhouse Marquee  

E. Discussion: Erosion  

VI. Audience Comments – New Business – (limited to 3 minutes per individual)  

VII. Supervisor Requests  

VIII. Adjournment  

 

Page 5 of 175



 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 6 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
February 8, 2024 - Minutes of Meeting 

Page 1 
______________________________________________________________________________  

 MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

 2 

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 3 

matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure that a 4 

verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon 5 

which such appeal is to be based. 6 

 7 

 CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 8 

 9 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Concord Station Community 10 

Development District was held on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. at Concord 11 

Station Clubhouse located at 18636 Mentmore Boulevard, Land O’ Lakes, Florida 34638. 12 

 13 

 Present and constituting a quorum: 14 

 15 

 Jessica LaBarbera   Board Supervisor, Chairman 16 

 Randall Griffin   Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 17 

 Angel Rivera    Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 18 

 Fred Berdeguez   Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary  19 

 Donna Matthias-Gorman  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 20 

 21 

 Also present were: 22 

 23 

 Darryl Adams    District Manager, Rizzetta & Co., Inc. 24 

 Vivek Babbar    District Counsel, Straley Robin Vericker 25 

 Phil Chang    District Engineer, Johnson Engineering  26 

      (via phone) 27 

 Kelsee Ratcliff   Clubhouse Manager 28 

 Deputy Brown   Pasco County Sheriff’s Office 29 

 Nick Margo    Representative, Solitude 30 

 Josh Oliver                                   Representative, Yellowstone 31 

 Seth     Representative, Yellowstone 32 

 Patricia Comings-Thibault  Representative, Breeze 33 

 34 

 Audience    Present 35 

 36 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS   Call to Order 37 

 38 

 Mr. Adams called the meeting to order and performed the roll call confirming a quorum 39 

for the meeting.  40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

Page 7 of 175



CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
February 8, 2024 - Minutes of Meeting 

Page 2 
______________________________________________________________________________  

 45 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS   Audience Comments 46 

 47 

 An audience member addressed the Board regarding garbage trucks. 48 

 49 

 An audience member addressed the Board regarding the newsletter. 50 

 51 

 An audience member addressed the Board regarding his fence on an easement. 52 

 53 

 An audience member addressed the Board regarding landscaping issues and rules 54 

for the sports field. 55 

 56 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 57 

 58 

 A.       Deputy Brown 59 

Deputy Brown went over incidents in the community.   60 

 61 

B. District Engineer 62 

Mr. Chang will investigate the pond erosion. 63 

 64 

 C. District Counsel 65 

 66 

Mr. Vivek discussed the new bill where board members will now need to take 67 

a mandatory 4 hours of ethics training each year. 68 

 69 

On a Motion by Ms. LaBarbera, seconded by Mr. Griffin, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved for all accounts to be reconciled by January 31, 2024 and cut off 
bank statements as of February 13, 2024 and any additional amounts to be transferred to 
Breeze, for the Concord Station Community Development District. 

  70 

 D.    Field Operations Manager 71 

 72 

  i. Aquatics Report  73 

The Board reviewed the Aquatics Report.   74 

 75 

On a Motion by Ms. LaBarbera, seconded by Ms. Matthias-Gorman, with all in favor, 
the Board of Supervisors approved for Amenities Services to start on February 9, 2024, 
with Breeze, for the Concord Station Community Development District. 

 76 

ii. Landscape Inspection Services Report 77 

The Board reviewed the Landscape Inspection Services Report.   78 

 79 

Page 8 of 175



CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
February 8, 2024 - Minutes of Meeting 

Page 3 
______________________________________________________________________________  

 80 

On a Motion by Mr. Berdeguez, seconded by Mr. Griffin, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved Yellowstone Irrigation repairs in the amount of $4,450.91, for the 
Concord Station Community Development District. 

 81 

On a Motion by Ms. LaBarbera, seconded by Mr. Berdeguez, with all in favor, the Board 
of Supervisors approved Mr. Berdeguez to work with Yellowstone regarding irrigation, for 
the Concord Station Community Development District. 

 82 

 E.       Clubhouse Manager 83 

  i. Review of Monthly Clubhouse Report 84 

Ms. Ratcliff presented her report to the Board. 85 

 86 

F.  District Manager 87 

Mr. Adams reminded the Board that the next regular meeting is scheduled 88 

for March 14, 2024, at 10:00 a.m.   89 

 90 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of the 91 

Board of Supervisors’ Regular Meeting 92 

held on January 11, 2024 93 

 94 

On a Motion by Ms. Matthias-Gorman, seconded by Ms. LaBarbera, with all in favor, 
the Board of Supervisors approved the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors’ Regular 
Meeting held on January 11, 2024, for the Concord Station Community Development 
District. 

 95 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Operation and 96 

Maintenance Expenditures for 97 

December 2023  98 

 99 

On a Motion by Mr. Berdeguez, seconded by Ms. LaBarbera, with all in favor, the Board 
of Supervisors ratified the Operation and Maintenance Expenditures for December 2023 
($158,817.00), for the Concord Station Community Development District. 

 100 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Budget Discussion 101 

 102 

 The Board discussed the 2024-2025 budget. 103 

 104 

 105 

 106 

 107 

Page 9 of 175



CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
February 8, 2024 - Minutes of Meeting 

Page 4 
______________________________________________________________________________  

 108 

On a Motion by Ms. LaBarbera, seconded by Mr. Rivera, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved Clubhouse Hours starting on Saturday, February 10, 2024 as 
follows; Sunday 10:00 am – 6:00 pm; Monday through Thursday 10:00 am – 7:00 pm; 
Friday and Saturday 10:00 am – 9:00 pm, for the Concord Station Community 
Development District. 

 109 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 110 

 111 

 There were no audience comments. 112 

 113 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests 114 

   115 

 There were no supervisor requests. 116 

 117 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment  118 

 119 

On a Motion by Ms. LaBarbera, seconded by Mr. Rivera, the Board of Supervisors 
adjourned the meeting at 10:15 p.m., for the Concord Station Community Development 
District. 

              120 

 121 

 122 

                                                    123 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary                  Chairman/Vice Chairman   124 

Page 10 of 175



EXHIBIT 2 

Page 11 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 

 

Concord Station 
Community Development District  

 
 

Financial Statements 
(Unaudited) 

 
January 31, 2024 

 
 

Prepared by: Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 
 

concordstationcdd.com 
rizzetta.com 

Page 12 of 175



����������	 
���������	 �������������	 �������������	 ����	����������� ��������������������������� !"#$%"$$& '$"$$$ $ !"#'%"$$& $ $����������� #()"&() *%(")$& %"(!'"!*) +"&+!"(*+ $ $��������
��������� ''"$+( $ ')"()% !!%"&!$ $ $
�,��	����������� %%"$+# $ $ %%"$++ $ $����	������ $ $ $ $ !*"($!"$($ $��������������������������� $ $ $ $ $ %"()+"$+&����������-����	�	���������� $ $ $ $ $ !("*+*"&*!����������� !"&*)"$*( *)(")$& %"()+"$+& '"'!("(!' !*"($!"$($ %!"'!$"$$$�������������������-�.���� %#"!') $ $ %#"!') $ $������	/������� )"(!$ $ $ )"(!$ $ $0���������������������� !'% $ $ !'% $ $
���������	�-�.������������� $ $ $ $ $ %!"'!$"$$$�������-�.���� '"'$$ $ $ '"'$$ $ $���������������� +)"*!& $ $ +)"*!& $ %!"'!$"$$$���	/1���.20�������	���������������	������� )$)"+&$ *%+"&*$ !"#$!")%* %")++"$)* $ $�����������������������	������ $ $ $ $ !*"($!"$($ $3�������������	������� !"%%%"$'& '#")#& !"#)!"+!+ %")#("!%! $ $��������	/1���.20�������	��� !"&%&"##& *)(")$& %"()+"$+& '"#(!"!&) !*"($!"$($ $����������������2���	/1���. !"&*)"$*( *)(")$& %"()+"$+& '"'!("(!' !*"($!"$($ %!"'!$"$$$

4567589:;<;=5645>>?6=;@ABCBD5E>B6;A=F;8=7;���������������,$!G+!G%$%#H��I����3������J

���3������K���	���	�������������������Page 13 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
������������������������������	���������������	� � �  ! �" # ! �"$%&�����������'����
�(���� �!)��!"� �!)��!"� �! ��!��� #)!�*)$+����,���-�������.�/����������� � � �!�** #�!�**$0���1��0����2��3��� � � ��� #���$4�5��������
����&����������� � � ")� #")�$,����������������� � � ��� #���$
����������� �!)��!"� �!)��!"� �! ��!��* #��!��"$�(&��������6�	��������%&�������0��� ��!��� �!��� �!"�� *��
����6�	�������� ��!��� �!��� �!"�� *��0��������7��'��������������8�/����.�'&������ �!*�� �!*�� �!*�* �!�"*��������	%������� ��!*"*  !")�  !"** )��'�����������%�������  !��� �!��� �!��� ���/����	���/���.��������� *�� *�� � *��������'������� *! �" *! �" *! �" �������	%������� *!��� � � ����90��� "�� �) ��) #�"�$�����������&��� *!��� *!��� *!��� �����������	����� ��!��� ��!��� )!�*� �!**���������,���	�'��� ��!� * ��!��* ��!��* #���$���!6�������70��� � * � * � * �0��������7������.���������� *! � �!��� �!��� �6�	������������	 �!��� ��� �� ���,�����������,�����	� �!*�� *�� � *��2/���+11������6��/����5�������� �! �� �! �� �!���    
�(.���������2��&���5�&&������0��� �*� � � �
������0��� )!��� �!��� *!��� #�!���$8�/����:�����	!,����������!���9&7� �!)�� ")  �� �))
����0��������7��'����������� ��*!*�� **!��� *�!��) �!"�)6�	��.�������������.����� ��!��� ��!��� �)!�" #)!�" $
����6�	��.����� ��!��� ��!��� �)!�" #)!�" $

;<=><?@ABCBD<=;<EEF=DBGHIJIK<LEI=BHDMB?D>B%����'����1�����������(&�����������1����������#��8����N'/���$�)�O������0��

%��N������P�������0��������%����'����
Page 14 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
����������������������� ����!��"�! ���#$�� ��#�%& ��#�%& �
������������������ ���#$�� ��#�%& ��#�%& ���������'�����!(��)���*'�����!+,���������-��������* �&#��� �#��� ��#%�� .�#%��/'�����!+(�������	��* ��%#��� �0#��� ��#$�& ��%'�����!(��)���* ��#��� �#%%& �#��$ ���
������������'�����!(��)���* ��&#��� ��#��� ��#$&& .$&%/1��2�	��(����3�*��4������(��)���*1��2�	�+,���������-������! �#��� ��& �0� .�/(����3�*���**�**���� $0� $0� ��� .0�/
����1��2�	��(����3�*��4������(��)���* �#$�� �#��& �#�0� .0%/3����+(����4��2�������(��)���*'�����!+,���������-��������* &#0�� �#0�� �#��� ���
����3����+(����4��2�������(��)���* &#0�� �#0�� �#��� ���(���������4�������5����6���������� $�#��� �%#&�& ��#�$$ �#&���5����7����,�"�������� 0#��� �#%%& � �#%%&-������(��)���,�"���86���������� �#0�� �#0�� &0� &0���9��7������96����������8,�"��� �0#��� 0#��� � 0#���7�*�4������ &#��� �#��� � �#���(����������**�**����* �#��� �#��� �#$0� ���(���������(!*���6���������� 0#��� �#%%& � �#%%&3������:�)�*�)�����*6���������� 0#��� �#%%% � �#%%%3������6��������	86���������� ��#%�� ��#0�� ��#��� �#���
����(���������4������ �%&#��� 0&#��� ��#��� �&#��� ����7�!*������)������������!83���*6����������8,�"��� ��#��� �#��� � �#���-������
�������� �#%�� $%& � $%%1���������2����!:�*����� �#&�� �#&�� �#�%� ���;�����!����������* ��#��� ��#��� �&#$�� �#���:���	�����,�"��� �0#��� 0#��� �&#��0 .��#��0/����*��"�+�����*�-�����* $#$�� �#��� � �#�������*��"�+-������<�� �$#$�� %#�%& � %#�%&����*��"�+6��� �0#��$ �0#�&� � �0#�&�����*��"�+7�*�4������ �#��� %%& � %%&����*��"�+7�*�4������� 
4:�=������* �#��� $�� � $������*��"�:�*"������(��)���* ��#��� �#��� �#$�� %������*��"�6���������� �0�#��� $�#��& �0#�0& .��#���/

>?@A?BCDEFEG?@>?HHI@GEJKLMLN?OHL@EKGPEBGAE(����������,�)���*����Q"�������*�*������������.:�3����R�2��*/�%�1������-��

(��R���*��'�������-��������(��������*
Page 15 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
������������������������� ���!�����"#��$�"
� �%"��� %"��� � %"���!������&'������� �("��� �("��� �(")�( *��)+���!��,������ �%"��� %"��� �"%�� �)�-���.���������� %�� �)/ � �)/
����0����!�&�������,���� ��� �%�")�� �(�"(�� �)�"/�� �%"�(�����1#�����2�������������3�&������1.���������� %"��� �"))/ �"�%� ��/
��������1#�����2��������� %"��� �"))/ �"�%� ��/!��4�1������������������5����2�����!��&	����.������� �"%�� (�� %�� ���5�$����2������&6���������#������ ��"��� �"��� �"�(� �"�%�5�$����6���������#��,���� �")�� �"��� �"��� �"��/5�$����.����������1������ �/"��� �"��� �"�/( %")��5� ����#�����".����������1������ �"��� ))/ � ))/5���������� ���&��#������� ��("(�( (�"��� /�"�%� ("�(/��	-����#������#������1.���������� )"��� �"��� %"��/ *�"��/+2������&��517�����	.����������1��� %"��� �"))/ � �"))/2�������8�� ���.����������1������ �"��� ))) � )))2������������1������� ��� /"��� �"��� � �"���9���.����������1������ �"��� ��� � ���.���	� ���5������� ��"/�� �"��� �"��� �0::���#������ �"%�� �"�)/ /� �"���!���5������1
�� ������� �"��� ��� ��� ���!��&	�����8�� ���1.���������� �"%�� (�� ��% ��(!���!�� ��� ��% � � �!���#��,���5������� �/")�� �"��� �"��� �!����-����!��4�2������.���������� �"��� �"��� � �"���#�����&#&��� .��������	#��,����1.� �"��� �"��� /%% ��%
��������"'�������"5�$�� �"��� �"��� �"�%� (%��������.���������� /%� �%� �/ ���-�����:�.���	� ���#��,���� �"%�� (�� � (��
����!��4�1���������� �(�"��� ���"%(� ���")(( �%"���#�������,����#�������,���� �%"��� ("��� /"��� �"���
����#�������,���� �%"��� ("��� /"��� �"���5�����	���&5������0���& ��"��� ��"��� � ��"���.�����������5�����	���& ���"��� ��"��� �"()� ��"�/�
����5�����	���& ���"��� )�"��� �"()� )�"�/�
�����;��������� �")��"(�/ )��"��/ ���"��� ��(")()

<=>?=@ABCDCE=><=FFG>ECHIJKJL=MFJ>CIENC@E?C#���� ����:��,��������;������������:����������*'�-����O $���+�)�9������2��

#��O������P�������2��������#���� ����
Page 16 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
���������
�������������� ����! ��"#����$��%��&������ � �'�(�')�� �'���'��� "��('�(�$
����!����*�������	+�����"#���$,���������,-�����,����������,-������ � � �. "�.$!����*�������	+�����"#���$#������/��0����1�����2� ���3���� � � �'��� "�'���$
����!����*�������	+�����"#���$ � � �'��� "�'���$
����!����*�������	+�����"#���$ � � �'�.. "�'�.4$*���������'��	�����	��,����� � � )�)'��� ")�)'���$
����*���������'�����,����� � �'�(�')�� �'���'��� "(�4')��$

567869:;<=<>6756??@7><ABCDCE6F?C7<B>G<9>8<+����3������� ���������%����������������������"2�H����I3J���$�4�0������*��

+��I������#�������*��������+����3����
Page 17 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
������������������������������	���������������	� � � � !�� "� !��#$%�����������&����
�'���� (� ��� (� ��� (� ��� �
����������� (� ��� (� ��� (� !�� "� !��#�'%��������)�����	���*)�%����������� (� ��� (� ��� � (� ���
����)�����	���* (� ��� (� ��� � (� ���
�����'%�������� (� ��� (� ��� � (� ���
�����'�����+�������,���"-����#�'%��.������ � � (� !�� "(� !��#/��������� ��	�����	�+0����� � � 1�� �1� "1�� �1�#
����/��������� ����+0����� � � 1!2 !�� "1!2 !��#

34564789:;:<4534==>5<:?@ABAC4D=A5:@<E:7<6:$����&����+�����������'%�����������+����������"��F����G&H���#�1��������/��

$��G������-�������/��������$����&����
Page 18 of 175



���������	 
���	� ����
��������������� ���������� �����������������	�� �
���	�� �
������ �
������������������������������	���������������	� � � �� �!� "�� �!�#$%�����������&����
�'���� � (�� )*� � (�� )*� � (�� ��! ") �)!#
����������� � (�� )*� � (�� )*� � ()� ��� "�) )��#�'%����������+�$�������������� !�� )*� !�� )*� �(� �!! ��� )!�,�����%�� � ��� ��� � ��� ��� � � ��� ���
������+�$������ � (�� )*� � (�� )*� �(� �!! � ��� )!�
�����'%�������� � (�� )*� � (�� )*� �(� �!! � ��� )!�
�����'�����-�������.���"/����#�'%��0������ � � � �!� ��� "� �!� ���#1��������� ��	�����	�-,����� � � � ��� !�) "� ��� !�)#
����1��������� ����-,����� � � � (!� ��� "� (!� ���#

234536789:9;3423<<=4;9>?@A@B3C<@49?;D96;59$����&����-�����������'%�����������-����������"��E����F&+���#�)���+�$������1��$���)�0�G�0�

$��F������/�������1��������$����&����
Page 19 of 175



Balance as of  

Account Investment January 31, 2024

The Bank of Tampa Business Money Market 5,781$                        

The Bank of Tampa ICS Operating

     Manufacturers and Traders Trust Co Business Money Market 4

     Pacific Premier Bank Business Money Market 94                               

     SouthPoint Bank Business Money Market 66,932

     Zions Bancorporation, N. A. Business Money Market 1                                 

FLCLASS Average Monthly Yield 5.4684% 423                             

FLCLASS Enhanced Cash Average Monthly Yield 5.3575% 383,826                      

Truist Bank Business Money Market 30,926                        

Total General Fund Investments 487,987$                    

The Bank of Tampa ICS Reserve

     Banc of California Business Money Market 247,433$                    

     Byline Bank Business Money Market 200,527

     Manufacturers and Traders Trust Co Business Money Market 11

     Pacific Premier Bank Business Money Market 241                             

     SouthPoint Bank Business Money Market 180,173

     Zions Bancorporation, N. A. Business Money Market 324                             

Total Reserve Fund Investments 628,709$                    

US Bank Series 2016 Revenue First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y 1,893,100$                 

US Bank Series 2016 Reserve A-1 First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y 778,953

US Bank Series 2016 Reserve A-2 First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y 139,029

US Bank Series 2016 Prepayment A-1 First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y 710

US Bank Series 2016 Prepayment A-2 First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y 3,375

Total Debt Service Fund Investments 2,815,167$                 

Concord Station CDD
 Investment Summary

January 31, 2024

Page 20 of 175



������� �����	
� ����
�� ���������
������������ �	�� �	�	��������������  !"#""$  !"%&'&()*+,'- .)/0121,'345)621**&031( 78""""$$!$ $9$$" $":"$:9"9; <<=";>?@"A�
B���������� ����CDEF���������  !"#9""  !"G&H3I&(JK0&+,'-I9"$!7#$L7#9 .)/0121,'345)621**&031( 78""""$$!$ $9$$" $":"$:9"9; <@=>@$?;@A�
B���������� �F�DF�ECFA�
B����� ����M��E�FA�
N��	� ����M��E�F
�������A�	������

����O������P
����������A�

	�O�Q�R��S�����
��Q��Q��������QC�Q����

A��������T�	���������	���	�A�	��
���
Page 21 of 175



�������� 	
���������� ���������� ������������������������ ������������������ � !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� /)0#1$#%23 4+!!55�64!..!+,.�789 +!4.!:;&;#<*=�>?2@;!+,.�  A!=6B-�� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.�789 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.� .A=!6B4 � !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.�789 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.� +A---B!4� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.�789 :)CC&%3D?''!+,.� +A!� B5-� !"#$#%&'()$* +.,-+,.!.- /)0#1$#%23 4+!!55�64!..+.,.-7);EF&3 +!4.!:;&;#<E&*=�>?2@;+.,.-  A! .B+.� !"#$#%&'()$* +.,-+,.!.- /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.-7);EF&3 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.- +A4+�B�.� !"#$#%&'()$* +.,-+,.!.- /)0#1$#%23 4+!!55�=!!56+.,.-7);EF&3 !!!!G%?$?;38E;;&2#/%>?2@;+.,.- +A+64B46� !"#$#%&'()$* +.,-+,.!.- /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.-7);EF&3 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.- +A!-�B-4� !"#$#%&'()$* +.,-+,.!.- /)0#1$#%23 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.-7);EF&3 :)CC&%3D?''+.,.- +A-- B..� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� H&IJE8E)$;3K;?'?;?#I+45-++4! -  .D)J0?$2@&CI@?%#/%!+,.� +!B��� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� H&IJE8E)$;3K;?'?;?#I+45.464� +4-..KCL#%'&$*H'&J#!+,.� .-B !� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� H&IJE8E)$;3K;?'?;?#I+45. �-+ +5 - M#$;CE%#D'N*!+,.� . 6B.=� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-+,.!.� <?OO#;;&P8ECF&$3AQ$JB QRS!!!!!56+4+ T);EUHEJ0#;1VWF#$I#I!+,.�  -B�!� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,!+,.!.� <?OO#;;&P8ECF&$3AQ$JB QRS!!!!!5=5 4 8#''H@E$#,7);EM?'#&2#PG%&N#',++.-  4B =� !"#$#%&'()$* !+,-!,.!.� K$'#&I@#*(#$J?$2 +�!4 Q$I;&''"&;#,HEI;<#WF&?%!+,.� +A.=!B!!X��Y���������� ������Z�[X��Y����� ������Z�[X��\���� ������Z�[

]������X������]�������̂��_���������������X�����̂ àb
�����������a�a��������ac�a����

Page 22 of 175



Concord Station Community Development District 
Notes to Unaudited Financial Statements 

January 31, 2024 
 

 
 
Balance Sheet 
 

1. Trust statement activity has been recorded through 01/31/24. 
2. See EMMA (Electronic Municipal Market Access) at http://emma.msrb.org for Municipal Disclosures and 

Market Data. 
3. For presentation purposes, the Reserves are shown in a separate fund titled Reserve Fund. 

 
Summary A/R Ledger – Payment Terms 
 

4. Payment terms for landowner assessments are (a) defined in the FY23-24 Assessment Resolution adopted 
by the Board of Supervisors, (b) pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 197 for assessments levied via the 
county tax roll. 
 

Summary A/R Ledger – Subsequent Collections  
 

5. General Fund – Payment for Invoice #AR00001161 in the amount of $12,012.27 was received in February 
2024. 

6. Debt Service Fund – Payment for Invoice # AR00001161 in the amount of $12,630.50 was received in 
February 2024. 
 

 
 
 

Page 23 of 175



EXHIBIT 3 

Page 24 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Invoice
Date: 9/22/2023

Invoice No.:  141203

13075 US Highway 19 N

Clearwater, FL 33764

Phone: 727-581-9339

5844 Old Pasco Road, Ste 100

C\O Rizzetta & Company

Concord Station CDD

Wesley Chapel, FL  38544

 Bill to: Concord Station Clubhouse

Customer ID:

 PO Number:

Reference: Work Order  194791Description: WO194791 Annual Alarm Inspection

Terms: NET30

Land O'Lakes, FL  34638
18636 Mentmore Blvd

 Service at:

14395 I-12205 CONCORDSTATI Location ID:

AmountUnit PriceQuantityDescriptionItem

Agreement

 1.00  165.00  165.00CLW Alarm Inspect Annual

Agreement Subtotal  165.00

Subtotal:

TOTAL DUE:

Sales Tax:

 165.00

 165.00

 0.00

Pay online at www.piperfire.com Page 25 of 175



1 of 5

WO#

194791

I#

12205

Combo

Yes

DATE

09/2�/2023

SITE NAME

Concord Station Clubhouse

EMAIL

Manager@concordstationclubhouse.com

CUSTOMER #

14395

SERVICE ADDRESS

1��3� Mentmore Blvd

CITY

Land O' Lakes

STATE

FL

ZIP

34�3�

CONTACT

Michael

PHONE

�1390945�9

SERVICE

Inspection

PO#:

TROUBLE REPORTED

DESCRIPTION OF WORK DONE

*Annual Fire Alarm Test and Inspection 
(Wo# 195719)

QUANTITY OF REPORTS

2 Including Service Order

COLOR OF INSPECTION TAG ON DEPARTURE

-- select an option --

ALARM PANEL NORMAL AT ARRIVAL

YES

ALARM PANEL NORMAL AT DEPARTURE

YES

MATERIAL:

QTY. MATERIAL DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL

LABOR:

DATE SERVICE PERSON HOURS RATE/HR. LABOR

9/2�/2023 Andrew Rooks 1

9/2�/2023 Kim Goldberg 1

INSPECTION DETAIL AMOUNT - AMOUNT

TOTAL MATERIAL

TOTAL LABOR

MIN. TRIP CHARGE $55.00 X __ DAYS

CONTRACT/QUOTE

SUB TOTAL

SALES TAX

PAY THIS AMOUNT

Customer Signature Date

09/2�/2023

Technician Signature Date

09/2�/2023

Lic#EF0001219
Lic#EF0001219
Lic#451523-001-1999
13075 US HWY 19 N.
CLEARWATER, FL 337�4
customersupport@piper�re.com 

PINELLAS (727) 5�1-9339
SARASOTA (941) 377-2100

PINELLAS FAX (727) 5�1-�332
SARASOTA FAX (941) 377-2001

STATEWIDE (�00) 327-7�04

 

SERVICE ORDER

Impairments may reduce or eliminate the effectiveness of this life safety system. As such it is the property owner / agents responsibility to provide a �re watch program to protect life & property.

This work was performed to customer satisfaction.

Page 26 of 175

Annual Alarm Inspection

$165.00

$165.00



2 of 5

De�ciencies & Comments / Service Order

No activities found

Standard Terms and Conditions

1. Subscriber agrees to pay Contractor its agents or assigns for a period of l year(s) from the date inspection service is started and in advance thereafter unless this contract is terminated at end of 
the year, or until terminated at the end of any subsequent contract year by written notice of such termination by either party at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of such year. Contractor shall have
the right to increase the annual service charge provided for herein at any time after one year from effective date of this agreement if an effective date is herein speci�ed, upon giving Subscriber
written notice sixty (�0) days in advance of the effective date of such increase, and if Subscriber is unwilling to pay such increase charge, Subscriber may terminate the Agreement by notifying
Contractor in writing by registered or certi�ed mail thirty (30) days prior to the otherwise effective date of any increase.

2. It is understood that neither PIPER FIRE PROTECTION, INC. nor any third party designated by PIPER FIRE PROTECTION, INC. which provides service to the subscriber is an insurer, that insurance if 
any,shall be obtained by the subscriber and that the amounts payable to the contractor hereunder are based upon the value of the services and the scope of liability as herein set forth and are 
unrelated to the value of the subscriber( s) property or others located in subscriber(s) premises. The subscriber does not desire this contract to provide for full liability of the contractor or any such 
third party and agrees that the contractor and any such third party shall be exempt from liability for loss or damage due directly to occurrences, or consequences therefrom, which the service is 
designed to detect or avert; that if the contractor or any such third party should be found liable for loss or damage due to failure of service in any respect, its liability shall be limited to a sum equal to 
ten percent of the annual service charge or $250.00, whichever is greater, and that the provisions of this paragraph shall apply if loss or damage, irrespective of -cause or origin, results directly or 
indirectly to person or property from performance or non performance of obligations imposed by this contract or from negligence, active or otherwise of the contractor and any such third party and 
their agents or employees. No suit or action shall he brought against the contractor more than one (I) year after the accrual of the cause of action thereof.

3. Subscriber is hereby given an absolute and unequivocal option to require the contractor to assume liability beyond that indicated above. If the subscriber exercises such option, a rider to this
contract will be entered into and signed by the parties hereto providing for the extent of contractor's additional liability in consideration for which subscriber agrees to pay the contractor additional
service charges speci�ed in the rider which shall be consonant with contractor's additional cost of obtaining liability insurance covering the full scope of liability requested by subscriber, in which 
event clause No. 4 above will be null and void, provided, however, that such additional obligation shall in no way be interpreted to hold contractor as an insurer.

4. Schedule of Service:
-Provide 24-hour emergency services and give Subscriber telephone contact,
-Furnish completed copy of Service Technician's report indicating what repairs, if any, are needed. Complete and provide work with proper authorization from Subscriber at addition cost to subscriber.
-See lists or inspection quote form page 1, attached.

5. It is agreed that all maintenance and other work, including inspections and tests of said system(s), shall he performed during regular daytime business hours, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and
holidays, unless Subscriber otherwise directs in such case Subscriber hereby agrees to pay contractor any increased cost resulting therefrom.

�. if Subscriber shall default in the making of any payment herein provided for of fails to comply with any of the other terms, conditions, or covenants of this agreement, Contractor may give
Subscriber ten days written notice of intention to terminate this agreement and thereupon at the expiration of said ten days (if such default continues) this agreement shall terminate and Contractor
may in all respects discontinue the service. Such notice shall be deemed to be su�ciently given if delivered to Subscriber personal, or sent by certi�ed mail postpaid and addressed to Subscriber at 
said premises; and the time of giving such notice shall be deemed the time when same is delivered or mailed as aforesaid. In the event of such termination and discontinuance of service, Subscriber 
agrees to pay Contractor, in addition to the amount then accrued and due, a sum equal to seventy-�ve percent of the service charge pro-rated for the period from such termination to the next 
permissible lamination date by Subscriber plus attorney' a fees and/or collection charges not exceeding twenty-�ve percent.

7. Contractor's obligation shall relate solely to inspection service and it shall in no way he obligated to maintain, repair, service, alter, replace or operate, nor shall it be in any way responsible for the
condition or operation of any equipment, device, or property of any sort of Subscriber or others.

�. Contractor assumes no liability for delays of service due to strikes, riots, �oods, �res, acts of God, or any cause beyond its control, and will not be required to supply service while any such delay or 
interruption shall continue.

9. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION - Subscriber does hereby for himself and any other parties, claiming under him, release and discharge Contractor from and against all hazards covered by
Subscriber's insurance, it being expressly agreed and understood that no insurance company or insurer will have any right of subrogation against Contractor.
10. INDEMINITY AGREEMENT - The Subscriber agrees to and shall indemnify and save harmless the Contractor and any third party designated by the Contractor which provides service and all their
employees and agents, for and against any claims, suits, losses, demands, and expenses arising from any death of or injury to any person or any loss or damage to property occasioned or alleged to 
be occasioned by Contractor's or any third party's performances or failure to perform its obligations under this agreement whether due to contractor's negligence or otherwise, or through burglary, 
theft, robbery, �re or any other cause.

11. This agreement may be assigned by the Subscriber provided the written consent of Contractor is �rst obtained, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld and shall be conditioned upon 
the assignees' agreement, in form satisfactory to Contractor to make the payments herein provided and to perform and comply with all the other terms, covenants, and conditions hereof on 
Subscriber's part to be preformed and complied with. There are no agreements, understandings, or representations changing, modifying, or otherwise affecting any of the terms of' this agreement. 
This agreement cannot be changed, modi�ed or discharged orally.

12. The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Agreement.
(The inspector suggests the improvements from the discrepancies sheet; however these suggestions are not the result of an engineering survey)
TEST FREQUENCY PER NFPA 72 -2010 TABLE 14.4.5. NOTED STANDARDS IN PARENTHESES ARE FROM NFPA 25 - 2011
DISCREPANCIES AND RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS WERE DISCUSSED WITH THE UNDERSIGNED OWNER OR OWNER’S

Page 27 of 175



3 of 5

Combo

Date of Inspection:

09/2�/2023

Customer #:

14395

Inspection File #:

12205

Inspector Name:

Andrew Rooks

Inspection Quali�cation:

FASA/BASA

Property Name:

Concord Station Clubhouse

Customer Contact:

Michael

Street:

1��3� Mentmore Blvd

Phone Number:

�1390945�9

City:

Land O' Lakes

State:

FL

Zip Code:

34�3�

Fax Number:

 

Building/Location: Email Address:

Manager@concordstationclubhouse.com

Service Provided:

Quarterly Semi-annual Annual Bi-Annual Sensitivity Walk Test

Monitoring Entity:

Rapid Response

Local:

No

Account #:

P74-5514

Phone #:

1�009323�22

FACP Loc.

In Riser Closet

Make:

Ademco

Model #:

5110-XM (UDACT)

Addressable:

Yes

Dialer Make:

Internal

Model: System Type:

Fire Alarm

Make Noti�cations

Notications Entity Yes/No Who was noti�ed Time

Monitoring Entity: Rapid Response Yes Rapid Response App 3:00 pm

Building Occupants: Maintenance Yes Michael Speidel 3:00 pm

Premises Monitoring

Monitoring Info Yes/No Who/Operator Time

Alarm Signal Yes Rapid Response App 4:00 pm

Supervisory Signal

Supervisory Restore

Trouble Signal Yes Rapid Response App 4:00 pm

Noti�cation That Testing is Complete

Noti�cations Made Yes/No Who Time

Bldg. Management Yes Michael Speidel 4:00 pm

Monitoring Agency Yes Rapid response 4:00 pm

No of Initiation Circuits Used:

2

No of Initiation Circuits Total:

2

Circuit Styles:

B

Last Service Date:

04/01/2017

Equipment Qty Manufacturer Model #

Photo Smoke 1 System Sensor 2151

Manual Pull Station 1 ADT BG-12L

Supervisory Switch Tamper

No of Indicating Circuits Used:

1

No of Indicating Circuits Total:

1

Circuit Styles:

B

Circuits Supervised:

Yes

Lic#EF0001219
13075 US HWY 19 N.
CLEARWATER, FL 337�4
customersupport@piper�re.com  

PINELLAS (727) 5�1-9339
SARASOTA (941) 377-2100

PINELLAS FAX (727) 5�1-�332
SARASOTA FAX (941) 377-2001

STATEWIDE (�00) 327-7�04

 

Fire Alarm System Test and Inspection Form

 
Prior to any Testing of Fire Alarm System

Alarm Initiation Devices And Circuit Information

Signaling Line Circuits and Circuit Information

Page 28 of 175



4 of 5

EquipmentEquipment QtyQty ManufacturerManufacturer Model #Model #

Horns

Horn/Strobes 1 System Sensor PW-2

Strobes

Primary Nominal Voltage:

120

Is the �re alarm on its own dedicated circuit?

Yes

Breaker/Fuse #:

Amps:

20

Storage Battery - Qty:

1

Type of Battery:

SEALED / LED ACID

Voltage Per Battery:

12

Amp Hour:

7

Date:

7/19

Other:

Calculated capacity to operate system, in hours:

24

Location of fuel source, if yes:

N/A

Engine driven generator dedicated to �re alarm:

N/A

Location of UPS system:

N/A

Equipment Powered by UPS:

N/A

In Alarm mode (minutes):

Calculated capacity of UPS batteries to drive system in standby (hours):

N/A

Type Functional Visual Comments

Control Panel Yes Yes

Lamps/LEDs Yes Yes

Fuses Yes Yes

Trouble Signals Yes Yes

Disconnect Switches Yes Yes

Ground Fault Monitor Yes Yes

Supervision Yes Yes

Primary Power Supply Yes Yes

Battery Condition Yes Yes

Load Voltage Yes Yes

Annunciator:

Qty Functional Visual Location

1 Yes Yes At Riser Closet

Inspect Test

Location Pass/Fail Device Zone Sensitivity Remarks

Above FACP in Riser Closet Pass Smoke Detector 5 Ok

At Riser Tamper Switch 3 Not tested

At Riser Water�ow 2 Not tested

At Riser Closet Pass Manual Pull Station 1 Ok

At Riser Closet Pass Horn Strobe Ok

At Riser Closet Pass Annunciator Normal

Outside on West Wall Electric Bell Not tested

EXPLANATION OF “NO” ANSWERS, DISCREPANCIES AND RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS:

INSPECTOR / TECHNICIAN COMMENTS:

Primary Power Supply / System Secondary Power Supply Battery Capacities and Battery Type

System Tests and Inspections

Device List

Page 29 of 175



5 of 5

Date the system was restored to normal operation on:

09/2�/2023

Time:

Name of Owner or Representative: Date:

09/2�/2023

Owner or Representative Signature:

Technician's Name:

Andrew Rooks

Date:

09/2�/2023

Technician's Signature:

De�ciencies & Comments / Fire Alarm Form

No activities found

DISCREPANCIES AND RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS WERE DISCUSSED WITH THE UNDERSIGNED OWNER OR OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE.

NFPA 72 2010 Edition Table 14.4.5. This testing was performed in accordance with applicable NFPA Standard.

Page 30 of 175



EXHIBIT 4 

Page 31 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Pasco Sheriff's Office INVOICE 

Customer Number: cooo72

�-""--- ----- - - --- --- --- - --- --•-nvoi6e-Number-: -AR-00-z!-0-5<>--- - ---

To: CONCORD STATION CDD

CONCORD STATION CDD 

lnvoice Date: 02/12/24

Terms: DUE UPON RECEIPT 

------�C,lCLRI.ZZE.T..TA_&_COM=,,u__ _______________________________ _ 
12750 CITRUS PARK LANE,SUITE 115 

TAMPA, FL 33625 

Date Description Amount 

02/12/24 FEB24 #5 11,066.83 

Total Due 11,066.83 

PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT 

Please make checks payable to: 

Pasco Sheriff's Office 
8661 Citizen Drive 

New Port Richey, FL 34654 

Customer Number: 
Invoice Number: 
Invoice Date: 
Total Amount Due $ 

C00072 

AR002054 

02/12/24 

11,066.83 

Total Payment $ _______ _ 
Page 32 of 175



Pasco Sheriff's Office       PROOF         [A / R    B A T C H    P R O O F   (Verbose)]             AR005436                 Page 1
TUE, FEB 13, 2024,  9:31 AM --req: CL3012----leg: GM GP--loc: ONSITE----job:1950140 J428-----prog: AR450 <2.34>--report id: ARARBPVB

Account / Account                Echo Account                     Misc Cd   Ref Dt  Invoice Number   Def. Plan Tax 1 Amount   Rec#
Amount                           Description                      Prep ID   Due Dt  PO Reference     Int. Rate Tax 2 Amount
Customer ID  Text Pt   Format    Name                                      Bill Dt  Product ID       Disc.Term Duty Amount
Cust Type ID Cust Type Div  PC   Fee Code                         Rel Code Quantity Reference Amt    Disc Amt  Charge Amount
================================ ================================ ======== ======== ================ ========= ==== ========= ====
0001-0000-3692000                General Fund    CONCORD STATION           02/12/24 AR002054                 0           0.00    1
    11,066.83                    FEB24 #5                         CL3012                                  0.00           0.00
C00072       NONE        NB 01   CONCORD STATION CDD                                                 0.0000              0.00
C00072       LES       OTHE      AR-CONCORD CONTRACT PMT                    1.00000 55308,184,535.36      0.00           0.00
                              BLOCK: Invalid Bank ID

Set ID: AR005436         System Computed Total:     11,066.83          User Computed Total:     11,066.83   TOTALS MATCH

GRAND TOTAL              System Computed Total:     11,066.83          User Computed Total:     11,066.83   TOTALS MATCH

Final Budget Check
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
No Budget Errors

Page 33 of 175

KD5477
Approved



Concord Station 

Law Enforcement Budget 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Personal Services: 

  

  

  

  

  

Salary: Rates # Hours Line Item Total Category Total 

Base Salary (Grade C01) 31.92 2,210.00 70,548 

Stipend 0.00 0 

OT as a % of Base Salary 0% 0 

Total Salary: 70,548 

Benefits: Rates # Hours 

Holiday Pay 31.92 102.00 3,256 

FICA 7.65% 5,646 

Retirement 29.60% 21,846 

Group Health/Life Insurance 10,500.00 10,500 

Total Benefits: 41,248 

|Total Personal Services: 111,796} 

Operating Expenses: 

Office Supply/furniture Estimate 0 

Communication (cell/air card) 1,020 

Software Maintenance 330 

Vehicle Equipment incl. extra keys/remotes 0 

Vehicle printer/inverter 0) 

Vehicle Expenses Estimate (gas/repairs/maint) 3,710 

Radio Maintenance Estimate 180 

Hiring Costs - Psyc/Poly/Drug/Credit 525 

Vehicle Insurance 7f5 

Professional Liability Insurance 1,165 

Uniform and Equip replacement 500 

Ammo Estimate 1,320 

Sig/Shotgun/Carbine w/accessories 422 

Axon License/Maintenance - BWC & Taser w/battery pack, cartridges, w 3,100 

Laptop 385 

Mobile Radio for Vehicle 741 

Hand Held Radio/Enhanced Charger/Battery 673 

{Total Operating Expenses: 14,846] 

Capital: 

Patrol vehicle ($32,801 less residual value of $2,000/5 years) Year 4 6,160 

{Total Capital: 6,160] 
  

Total Estimate Sheriff's Office Costs - CONTRACT TOTAL 132,802 

x    

 

Vice Chairman, Concord Station CDD

Board approved 6/8/2023 Meeting

VC signed in absence of Chairman

Page 34 of 175



EXHIBIT 5 

Page 35 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 

17900 Hunting Bow Circle, Suite 101 ■Lutz ■ Florida 33558 

(813) 909‐8099 ■Fax (239) 334‐3661 
 

 
 
As requested, Johnson Engineering completed a visual assessments of the storm system in the Longwood 
(SWFWMD Permit No. 44023781.003) and Trilby (SWFWMD Permit No. 44023781.005) sections of the 
District as required by the Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD).   
 
Based  on  the  assessment,  there  were  erosion  and  storm  structure  issues  that  needed  to  be 
addressed/repaired.   As such,  information related to the required repairs was compiled (attached) and 
sent to three contractors requesting cost quotes to correct/address the issues identified. 
 
In Longwood, the following issues were included in the request for quotes: 
 

 The  concrete  weir  at  Pond  L8  is  damaged  with  the  right  section  of  the  weir  requiring 
reconstruction.  (Photo 1) 

 In Pond L11, there is also an area where there is erosion on the pond embankment across from 
the weir.  This erosion needs to be repaired. (Photo 2) 

 The weir at Pond S9 has both ends exposed and needs to be re‐imbedded  into the pond bank 
using soil, sod and cement bag riprap. (Photo 3) 

 
In Trilby, the following issue was included in the request for quotes: 
 

 Although not within Trilby, the concrete weir  in Pond W30  (which  is connected to Pond T1)  is 
experiencing erosion at  the  right  side of  the weir.   This  should be backfilled and  resodded  to 
address the erosion. (Photo 4) 

 
Quotes were received from three contractors as follows (and attached): 
 

1. Crosscreek Environmental:  $3,850.00 
2. Site Masters of Florida:    $6,000.00 
3. Finn Outdoor:      $6,450.00 

 
Based on the quotes received, Crosscreek Environmental submitted the lowest quote.  At this time, we 
request that the Board of Supervisors select a contractor to undertake the work. 
 
 
 

TO:  Darryl Adams 
Concord Station CDD District Manager 

    DATE:  December 5, 2023 

FROM: 
Phil Chang, P.E. 
  Concord Station CDD District Engineer      RE: 

Storm  System  Maintenance  Repairs
(Longwood & Trilby) 

Page 36 of 175



 

CONCORD STATION CDD POND REPAIRS 
NOVEMBER 10, 2023 

SU
N

LA
K

E 
B

LV
D
 

Page 37 of 175



 

 

Photo 1:  Pond W30 – There is erosion at right 
side of weir.  Backfill and sod needed to re-
imbed weir into pond bank. 

MENTMORE BLVD 

TR
IN

IT
Y 

C
O

TT
A

G
E 

D
R
 

W30 

Page 38 of 175



 

 

Photo 2:  Pond L8 Ou all – Reconstruct 

right side of concrete weir 

H
O

YL
A

K
E 

C
T 

NOTE:  ACCESS FROM HOYLAKE 

COURT LIMITED DUE TO FENCES 

ERECTED BY HOMEOWNERS 

Page 39 of 175



 

 

Photo 3:  Pond L11 – Erosion on 

embankment needs to be repaired 

Page 40 of 175



 

 

Photo 4: Pond S9 – There  is erosion at both sides of 

weir.  Backfill, sod and cement bag rip rap needed to 

re-imbed weir into pond bank. 

Page 41 of 175



EXHIBIT 6 

Page 42 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Estimate

Date

11/27/2023

Estimate #

10968

Name / Address

Concord Station CDD
17900 Hunting Bow Circle, Suite 101
Lutz, FL 33558
Phil Chang

Crosscreek Environmental Inc.

111 61st Street East
Palmetto, FL 34221

Please sign and return if accepted

Phone # (941) 479-7811 Fax # (941) 479-7812 admin@crosscreekenv.com www.crosscreekenvironmental.com

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Restoration of stormwater structures per Johnson Engineering
report dated November 10th, 2023

Pond W30 Weir
Use sediment from erosion around control structure to reform
area back to grade. Install geo fabric, pin in place, and resod.

1 550.00 550.00

Pond L8 Outfall
Remove broken bricks and mortar from control structure. Form
new control structure extension out of plywood. Drill and
anchor rebar into existing control structure to secure newly
poured section. Hand mix and new control structure extension.
Use sediment from erosion around control structure to reform
area back to grade. Install geo fabric, pin in place, and resod.

1 1,750.00 1,750.00

Pond L11
Use sediment from erosion in the pond to reform area back to
grade. Install geo fabric, pin in place, and resod.

1 500.00 500.00

Pond S9 Weir
Use sediment and cement bags from erosion around control
structure to reform area back to grade. Install geo fabric, pin in
place, and resod.

1 1,050.00 1,050.00

30% deposit due prior to commencement of work.  Amount to
be deducted from final invoice.

$3,850.00

Page 43 of 175



EXHIBIT 7 

Page 44 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Site Masters of Florida, LLC
   5551 Bloomfield Blvd.

Lakeland, FL 33810
Phone: (813) 917-9567

Email: tim.sitemastersofflorida@yahoo.com

Remediate deficiencies in stormwater system as identified in 
report by District Engineer on 11/10/23.

Pond W30 Outfall weir - repair erosion $600

Pond L8 Outfall weir - rebuild s.e. side $1,800

Pond L11 Pond bank - repair erosion $1,400

Pond S9 Outfall weir - repair erosion $2,200

TOTAL $6,000

PROPOSAL

Concord Station CDD

Stormwater Maintenance

12/5/2023

Page 45 of 175



EXHIBIT 8 

Page 46 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



ESTIMATE

Finn Outdoor

730 20th Ave N
Saint Petersburg, FL 33704

robb@finnoutdoor.com
(813)957-6075

Concord Station CDD

Bill to

Concord Station CDD

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 2103
Estimate date: 11/22/2023

# Date Product or service SKU Qty Rate Amount

1. O and M Items 1 $800.00 $800.00

Pond W30 Weir -- Fill and compact imported soil to embed wingwalls, install erosion control fabric and sod to match
surroundings.

2. O and M Items 1 $2,200.00 $2,200.00

Pond L8 Outfall -- Install rebar dowels into remaining portion of the outfall structure, form and pour concrete wall to rebuild the
missing/damaged portion of the outfall structure, restore surrounding bank with imported fill, erosion control fabric, and sod
to match surroundings.

3. O and M Items 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00

Pond L11 -- Restore approximately 20 linear feet of pond bank with imported fill, geotextile fabric, and sod to match
surroundings

4. O and M Items 1 $1,850.00 $1,850.00

Pond S9 -- Rebuild pond bank at weir wingwalls with imported fill, concrete bag rip rap, geotextile underlay, and sod to
match surroundings. Wingwalls to be embedded in newly built pond bank.

Total $6,450.00

Page 47 of 175



EXHIBIT 9 

Page 48 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



‘ 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899 

South wv est Flor ida (352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only) 
Water SER TAG CEN District SUNCOM 628-4150 TDD only 1-800-231-6103 (FL only) 

Seana 
Sa a 

   On the Internet at: WaterMatters.org 

  

An Equal Bartow Service Office Sarasota Service Office Tampa Service Office “gy 
Opportunity 170 Century Boulevard 78 Sarasota Center Boulevard 7601 Highway 301 North ~ 

EInpIayer Bartow, Florida 33830-7700 Sarasota, Florida 34240-9770 Tampa, Florida 33637-6759 <Q, 
(863) 534-1448 or (941) 377-3722 or (813) 985-7481 or 

1-800-492-7862 (FL only) 1-800-320-3503 (FL only) 1-800-836-0797 (FL only) 

May 01, 2023 

Concord Station CDD 

c/o Rizzetta & Company 

3434 Colwell Ave., Ste. 200 

Tampa, FL 33614 

Subject: REMINDER of Inspection Report Coming Due 

Permit No: 44023781.005 

Project Name: Concord Station - Phase 4, Units Aand B 

A condition of your permit requires that you submit an inspection report to the District in 

accordance with a specific schedule. This inspection report is due on July 27, 2023. This letter 

was generated to remind you of this requirement in sufficient time for you to complete the 

inspection and submit the report to the District by the due date. 

Inspection reports provide assurance to the District that the surface water management system 

is properly operated and maintained. The inspection report must include the District form 

"Statement of Inspection for Proper Operation and Maintenance" available at | 

https://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/sites/default/files/medias/documents/04.10R-023.pdf. The form 

must be certified by a Florida registered Professional Engineer. 

Information can be submitted online using eCompliance by visiting the District's Environmental 

Resource Permitting System in ePermitting located on the District's website at 

http://WaterMatters.org/LogInERP . If you do not have an account you can sign up by clicking 

the “Register Now” button. 

If any maintenance procedures or remedial actions are necessary prior to submittal of the 

certified District form, please advise the District in writing. The inspection report must be 

submitted to the District by the date above. 

If you have already complied with this requirement, please notify us so we can update our 

customer records. If you have questions, please contact the Brooksville Service Office at (352) 

796-7211 or (800) 423-1476 (FL only). 

Sincerely, 

Kim L. Schwartz 

Senior Regulation Processing Specialist 

Regulatory Support Bureau 

Regulation Division

Page 49 of 175



  

An Equal 

Opportunity 

Employer 

W 7; ‘ 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899 

South est Flor ida (352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only) 

mar. 

Water Management Dist TICt suNcome28-4150 TDD only 1-800-231-6103 (FL only) 
oe 

On the Internet at: WaterMatters.org 

  

Bartow Service Office Sarasota Service Office Tampa Service Office 

170 Century Boulevard 78 Sarasota Center Boulevard 7601 Highway 301 North 

Bartow, Florida 33830-7700 Sarasota, Florida 34240-9770 Tampa, Florida 33637-6759 

(863) 534-1448 or (941) 377-3722 or (813) 985-7481 or 

1-800-492-7862 (FL only) 1-800-320-3503 (FL only) 1-800-836-0797 (FL only) 

August 07, 2023 

    

Concord Station CDD i A 

c/o Rizzetta & Company ta 
5844 Old Pasco Rd., Ste. 100 Pf AUG 90. 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 

Subject: REMINDER of Inspection Report Coming Due 

Permit No: 44023781.003 

Project Name: Lendantec - Phases 1C 1D 1E 1F 

A condition of your permit requires that you submit an inspection report to the District in 

accordance with a specific schedule. This inspection report is due on October 12, 2023. This 

letter was generated to remind you of this requirement in sufficient time for you to complete the 

inspection and submit the report to the District by the due date. 

Inspection reports provide assurance to the District that the surface water management system 

is properly operated and maintained. The inspection report must include the District form 

"Statement of Inspection for Proper Operation and Maintenance" available at 

https://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/sites/default/files/medias/documents/04.10R-023.pdf. The form 

must be certified by a Florida registered Professional Engineer. 

Information can be submitted online using eCompliance by visiting the District's Environmental 

Resource Permitting System in ePermitting located on the District's website at 

http://WaterMatters.org/LogInERP . If you do not have an account you can sign up by clicking 

the “Register Now” button. 
  

lf any maintenance procedures or remedial actions are necessary prior to submittal of the 

certified District form, please advise the District in writing. The inspection report must be 

submitted to the District by the date above. 

If you have already complied with this requirement, please notify us so we can update our 

customer records. If you have questions, please contact the Brooksville Service Office at (352) 

796-7211 or (800) 423-1476 (FL only). 

Sincerely, 

Regulatory Support Services 

Regulatory Support Bureau 

Regulation Division

Page 50 of 175



EXHIBIT 10 

Page 51 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Waterway Inspection Report 
 

                                                            Reason for Inspection:  

 

Inspection Date:   

 

 

 

Prepared for: 
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
888.480.LAKE (5253) 

 

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

Monthly required

Nick Margo, Aquatic Biologist

Wesley Chapel Field Office

2024-02-12

Larry Krause, District Manager
Breeze Home

1540 International Parkway, Suite 2000
Lake Mary, FL 32746

Page 52 of 175



Waterway Inspection Report  

 

   

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253)                                                          

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

      Pg 

SITE ASSESSMENTS 

PONDS                      

PONDS                              

PONDS                              

PONDS                      

PONDS                              

PONDS                              

PONDS                              

 

                 MANAGEMENT/COMMENTS  SUMMARY____________________________________________________  

                 SITE MAP ____________________________________________________________________________  

W1 - 3

 7 - 8

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

W4 - 6

W10 - 12

 3

2024-02-12

W13 & 14

W7 - 9

 7

 9

 5

 4

 6

Page 53 of 175



3 

Waterway Inspection Report  

 

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253) 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 
 
 
Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

Site:         

Site:         

Site:         

The site has some seasonal algae
but no nusiance vegetation to
currently note and a healthy stand
of native, beneficial Gulf
Spikerush within it.

Site looks good

The site’s water level is back
down from last month but it
remains in good condition with
minimal nuisance species and a
healthy stand of native gulf
spikerush along the perimeter.

Surface algae

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

W2

W3

Normal growth observed

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specific

2024-02-12

Routine maintenance next visit

W1

Species non-specific

Site looks good

The water level is down but the
site remains in good condition
with no noted algae and minimal
nuisance, shoreline vegetation.

Routine maintenance next visit

Page 54 of 175



4 

Waterway Inspection Report  

 

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253) 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 
 
 
Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

Site:         

Site:           

Site:         

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

W6

There were no noted nuisance
vegetation. There is a healthy
stand of gulf spikerush along the
perimeter and the water clarity is
good.

Species non-specific

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

The site’s water level is back
down and it remains in good
condition with minimal nusiance
species growth and a healthy
stand of gulf spikerush along the
perimeter.

2024-02-12

W4

Site looks good

Species non-specific

The water level has receded a bit
leaving exposed bank but there is
minimal nusiance vegetation
growth and the native vegetation
looks healthy.

Species non-specific

W5

Routine maintenance next visit

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

Page 55 of 175



5 

Waterway Inspection Report  

 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253)                                                           

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 
 
 
 
 
Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

Site:           

Site:           

Site:          

The site is in good condition with
a good amount of native
vegetation, minimal nuisance
vegetation and good water clarity.

Site looks good

Species non-specific

W7

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

Routine maintenance next visit

The site was treated for Chara
twice last month and is in good
condition with minimal nusiance
vegetation and minimal algae.

The site remains in good
condition with no noted issues.
The water is at the high
watermark.

W9

Routine maintenance next visit

2024-02-12

Species non-specific

W8

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specific

Site looks good

Page 56 of 175



6 

Waterway Inspection Report  

 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253)      

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 
 
 
 
 
Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

Site:          

Site:           

Site:           

Species non-specific

W11

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

2024-02-12

Species non-specific

The site remains in good
condition with minimal nusiance
vegetation and excellent water
clarity.

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specific

The site has water and is in good
condition with minimal nuisance
vegetation and no algae.

Site looks good

W12

W10

The site remains in overall good
condition with minimal seasonal
growth and a healthy stand of gulf
spike rush along the perimeter of
the site.

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

Page 57 of 175



7 

Waterway Inspection Report  

 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253)      

 

Comments:  

 

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

 

 

Site:  

Comments:  

 

 

 

Action Required: 

 

 

Target: 

  

Management Summary 

Site:          

Site: 

Site:   

 

 

 

 

 

  

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

Species non-specific

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

The site remain in good condition
with minimal nuisance species
noted and a strong monoculture of
Gulf Spikerush along the
perimeter.

2024-02-12

W14

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specific

W13

Site looks good

Not much going on if you compared this report to the last one for W1 thru W14. Things along the common areas look a little more brown as we head into the dry
season. You'll also see more exposed bank since last month, but that wouldn't be noticeable just but comparing reports. We saw one issues this inspection and
overall most of the site are in good condition.

Site W3 had some seasonal green algae along the perimeter. It was recently treated though so giving it 7 to 14 days should yield good control. If not we will
reapply algicide to the site.

No other issues were noted. There was no shoreline weed concerns or submersed weeds in any of the inspected sites.

Thank You For Choosing SOLitude Lake Management!

The site remains in good
condition with minimal
nuisance vegetation or algae.

Page 58 of 175



Waterway Inspection Report  

 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253)                                                           8 

 

Site Comments Target Action Required 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

Routine maintenance next visitSite looks good

W8 Site looks good

Site looks good

Surface algae

Species non-specific

Species non-specific

Species non-specific

W11

W3

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14

Routine maintenance next visit

W6

Species non-specific

Routine maintenance next visit

Normal growth observed

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specificW1

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

2024-02-12

W14

Routine maintenance next visit

W5

Species non-specific

W2

Site looks good

Species non-specific

Species non-specific

Routine maintenance next visit

Routine maintenance next visit

Species non-specific

Site looks good

Species non-specific

W4

W12

Site looks good

Species non-specific

Site looks good

W9

W10

Species non-specific

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visitW7

W13

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

Routine maintenance next visit

Routine maintenance next visit

Routine maintenance next visit

Site looks good

Species non-specific

Monthly required

Page 59 of 175



Waterway Inspection Report  

 

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                         888.480.LAKE (5253) 

 

 

Concord Station CDD - Wellington 1 thru 14 2024-02-12

Page 60 of 175



2/14/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00509409Work Order
Number

Larry KrauseContact00509409Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated nuisance vegetation within accessible
areas of Trilby, Longwood and Drexel

Thank You For Choosing SOLitude Lake
Management!

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) INVASIVES CONTROL  

Mt-ALL (4xMonth)    

Page 61 of 175



2/14/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00499897Work Order
Number

Larry KrauseContact00499897Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated nuisance vegetation including primrose
in sites C2, R1, R2 & EA2

Thank You For Choosing SOLitude Lake
Management!

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Wetland-ALL Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Wetland-ALL INVASIVES CONTROL  

Wetland-ALL    

Page 62 of 175



2/14/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00501412Work Order
Number

Larry KrauseContact00501412Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated nuisance shoreline weeds in sites D1
thru D10, E1 thru E3 & S1 thru S9

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 63 of 175



2/14/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00500095Work Order
Number

Larry KrauseContact00500095Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated algae within sites L2, L4 & W3
-Treated shoreline weeds within sites: L1 thru
L12

Thank You For Choosing SOLitude Lake
Management!

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 64 of 175



2/8/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00498663Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00498663Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated algae: T10
-Treated floating weeds: T10
-Treated shoreline weeds: T1 thru T13

**poster board map left in clubhouse office**

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 65 of 175



2/12/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00499343Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00499343Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated algae: W27 thru W30 & W33
-Treated shoreline weed: W1 thru W33

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 66 of 175



2/19/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00509409Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00509409Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared ByTreated accessible MT areas in The Retreat,
The Manors and Waterford

Thank You FormChoosing SOLitude Lake
Management!

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) INVASIVES CONTROL  

Mt-ALL (4xMonth)    

Page 67 of 175



2/20/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00502892Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00502892Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated algae & submersed weeds: F1
-Treated shoreline weeds: F1 thru F5; M1 thru
M4; R1 thru R11; S12 thru S21

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 68 of 175



2/27/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00507727Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00507727Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated algae: S10 thru S13 & W4 thru W7

Thank You For Choosing SOLitude Lake
Management!

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 69 of 175



2/22/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00505688Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00505688Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared ByTreated nuisance species in sites R2 & R3Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Wetland-ALL Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Wetland-ALL INVASIVES CONTROL  

Wetland-ALL    

Page 70 of 175



2/22/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00509409Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00509409Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated accessible MT areas in Wellington, The
Manors and the Retreat

Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Mt-ALL (4xMonth) INVASIVES CONTROL  

Mt-ALL (4xMonth)    

Page 71 of 175



2/22/2024Created Date

18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Address00504645Work Order
Number

Darryl AdamsContact00504645Work Order

Concord Station CDDAccount 

 

Service Report

NICK MARGOPrepared By-Treated shoreline weeds: W20 thru W33Specialist
Comments to
Customer

Work Details

Work Order Assets

Asset Status Product Work Type

Lake-All Inspected  

Service Parameters

Asset Product Work Type Specialist Comments to Customer

Lake-All LITTORAL SHELF  

Lake-All TRASH / DEBRIS COLLECTION (IN HOUSE)  

Lake-All DYE APPLICATION  

Lake-All SHORELINE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All LAKE WEED CONTROL  

Lake-All ALGAE CONTROL  

Lake-All    

Page 72 of 175



EXHIBIT 11 

Page 73 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 SERVICES CONTRACT 

 CUSTOMER NAME: Concord Station CDD - Acct # 5466 
 SUBMITTED TO: Darryl Adams 
 CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE: April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025 
 SUBMITTED BY: Camila Morao 
 SERVICES: Annual Maintenance Service Renewal for Six (6) Wetland Buffers (11.67 Acres) 

 This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date indicated above and is by and between 
 SOLitude Lake Management, LLC (“SOLitude” or the “Company”) and the customer identified above (the 
 “Customer”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 1.  The Services  .  SOLitude will provide services at  the Customer’s property as described in Schedule A 
 attached hereto: 

 2.  PAYMENT TERMS.  The Annual Contract Price is  $6,156.00  . SOLitude shall invoice Customer the total 
 of  $513.00 per month  for the Services to be provided under this Agreement. The term of this agreement is 
 for a period of twelve (12) months, with payment invoiced on the first day of each month, reminding them 
 that a contract payment is due by the end of that same month.  The customer is obligated to pay each 
 monthly contract payment per the terms of this contract, without any obligation on the part of SOLitude 
 to invoice or send any other sort of reminder or notice. Due to the seasonality of these services, and the 
 disproportionate amount of time and materials dedicated to providing these services during some times 
 of the year as compared to others, based on the season, weather patterns, and other natural factors, the 
 amount billed and paid to date is not necessarily equivalent to the amount of work performed to date. 
 The Customer will be liable for any returned check fees and any collection costs, including reasonable 
 attorney fees and court costs, for any invoices not otherwise timely paid, and interest at the rate of 1% per 
 month may be added to all unpaid invoices.  Should the work performed be subject to any local, state, or 
 federal jurisdiction, agency, or other organization of authority for sales or other taxes or fees in addition to 
 those expressly covered by this contract, the customer will be invoiced and responsible for paying said 
 additional taxes in addition to the contract price and other fees above.  SOLitude shall be reimbursed by 
 the customer for any non-routine expenses, administrative fees, compliance fees, or any other similar 
 expense that are incurred as a result of requirements placed on SOLitude by the customer that are not 
 covered specifically by the written specifications of this contract. 

 3.  TERM AND EXPIRATION.  This Agreement is for an  annual management program as described in the 
 Schedule A attached.  Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to 
 by the parties in writing. Contract  will automatically renew annually at the end of the contract effective 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 74 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  2  of  7 

 date for subsequent one (1) year terms, with a six percent (6%) escalation in the Annual Contract Price 
 each year, under the same terms, specifications, and conditions as set forth by this contract, unless either 
 party gives written notice of cancellation thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of this contract, or 
 subsequent renewal contracts. 

 4.  PRICING.  The  Company  reserves  the  right  to  annually  increase  the  amount  charged  for  the 
 services  beyond  the  escalation  percentage  stated  in  the  TERM  AND  EXPIRATION  above,  which  shall  be 
 communicated by written notice to the Customer, which notice may be by invoice. 

 5.  TERMINATION.  If  SOLitude  terminates  your  service  for  nonpayment  or  other  default  before  the  end 
 of  the  Services  Contract,  if  the  Customer  terminates  this  Services  Contract  for  any  reason  other  than  in 
 accordance  with  the  cancellation  policy  outlined  above  ,  or  in  the  event  this  Contract  does  not 
 automatically  renew  and  the  customer  terminates  it  before  the  termination  date,  Customer  agrees  to  pay 
 SOLitude,  in  addition  to  all  other  amounts  owed,  an  Early  Termination  Fee  in  the  amount  specified  below 
 (“Early  Termination  Fee”).  The  Customer’s  Early  Termination  Fee  will  be  50%  of  the  remaining  value  of  the 
 Contracted  Price.  The  Early  Termination  Fee  is  not  a  penalty,  but  rather  a  charge  to  compensate 
 SOLitude  for  the  Customer’s  failure  to  satisfy  the  Services  Contract  on  which  the  Customer’s  rate  plan  is 
 based. 

 6.  INSURANCE  AND  LIMITATION  OF  LIABILITY  .  SOLitude  will  maintain  general  liability  and  property 
 damage  insurance  as  necessary  given  the  scope  and  nature  of  the  Services.  The  Company  will  be 
 responsible  for  those  damages,  claims,  causes  of  action,  injuries  or  legal  costs  to  the  extent  of  its  own 
 direct  negligence  or  misconduct,  and  then  only  to  an  amount  not  to  exceed  the  annual  value  of  this 
 Agreement.  In  no  event  will  any  party  to  this  Agreement  be  liable  to  the  other  for  incidental, 
 consequential or purely economic damages. 

 7.  FORCE  MAJEURE  .  The  Company  shall  not  be  liable  for  any  delay  in  performing  the  Services,  nor 
 liable for any failure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable control. 

 8.  ANTI-CORRUPTION  AND  BRIBERY.  Each  party  represents  that  neither  it  nor  anyone  acting  on  its 
 behalf  has  offered,  given,  requested  or  accepted  any  undue  financial  or  other  advantage  of  any  kind  in 
 entering  into  this  Agreement,  and  that  it  will  comply  with  all  applicable  laws  and  regulations  pertaining  to 
 corruption, competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 9.  GOVERNING  LAW  .  This  Agreement  shall  be  governed  and  construed  in  accordance  with  the  laws 
 of the state in which the Services are performed. 

 10.  ENTIRE  AGREEMENT  .  This  Agreement  constitutes  the  entire  agreement  between  the  parties  with 
 respect  to  the  subject  matter  and  replaces  any  prior  agreements  or  understandings,  whether  in  writing  or 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 75 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  3  of  7 

 otherwise.  This  Agreement  may  not  be  modified  or  amended  except  by  written  agreement  executed  by 
 both  parties.  In  the  event  that  any  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  determined  to  be  void,  invalid,  or 
 unenforceable,  the  validity  and  enforceability  of  the  remaining  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 affected. 

 11.  NOTICE  .  Any  written  notice  provided  under  this  Agreement  may  be  sent  via  overnight  mail, 
 certified  mail,  hand  delivery  or  electronic  mail  with  delivery  confirmation,  to  the  individuals  and  addresses 
 listed below. 

 12.  BINDING  .  This  Agreement  shall  inure  to  the  benefit  of  and  be  binding  upon  the  legal 
 representatives and successors of the parties. 

 13.  FUEL/TRANSPORTATION  SURCHARGE  .  Like  many  other  companies  that  are  impacted  by  the  price  of 
 gasoline,  a  rise  in  gasoline  prices  may  necessitate  a  fuel  surcharge.  As  such,  the  Company  reserves  the 
 right  to  add  a  fuel  surcharge  to  Customer's  invoice  for  any  increase  in  the  cost  of  fuel  as  measured  above 
 the  same  time  period  in  the  prior  year  (by  the  National  U.S.  Average  Motor  Gasoline-Regular  Fuel  Price  per 
 Gallon  Index  reported  by  the  U.S.  Department  of  Energy).  The  surcharge  may  be  adjusted  monthly  (up  or 
 down) with the price of gasoline. 

 14.  DISCLAIMER  .  SOLitude  is  not  responsible  for  the  failure  of  any  treatment,  equipment  installation,  or 
 other  work  that  result  from  dam  or  other  structural  failures,  severe  weather  and  storms,  flooding,  or  other 
 acts of God that are outside of the control of SOLitude. 
 Customers understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of 
 the products used to treat lakes and ponds.  The customer is responsible for notifying SOLitude in advance 
 of the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds 
 for irrigation purposes.  The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the 
 irrigation of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of treated water being used by 
 the customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of SOLitude. 
 Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the 
 labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, there is a risk under 
 certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops.  This risk is most severe in times of extremely 
 hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen 
 levels are naturally at their lowest levels.  Oftentimes lakes and ponds will experience natural fish kills under 
 these conditions even if no work is performed.  Every effort, to include the method and timing of 
 application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to 
 avoid such problems.  However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of 
 the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of SOLitude that will result in the death of some 
 fish and other aquatic life.  The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain 
 even if no work was performed.  The customer agrees to hold SOLitude harmless for any issues with fish or 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 76 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  4  of  7 

 other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct control of 
 SOLitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of SOLitude. 

 15.  NONPERFORMANCE  .  In  the  case  of  any  default  on  the  part  of  the  Company  with  respect  to  any  of 
 the  terms  of  this  Agreement,  the  Customer  shall  give  written  notice  thereof,  and  if  said  default  is  not  made 
 good  within  (30)  Thirty  Days,  the  Customer  shall  notify  the  Company  in  writing  that  there  has  been  a 
 breach  of  the  Agreement.  The  Company  in  case  of  such  breach  shall  be  entitled  to  receive  payment 
 only  for  work  completed  prior  to  said  breach,  so  long  as  the  total  paid  hereunder  does  not  exceed  the 
 Contract sum. 

 16.  E-Verify  .  Solitude  Lake  Management  LLC  utilizes  the  federal  E-Verify  program  in  contracts  with 
 public  employers  as  required  by  Florida  State  law,  and  acknowledges  all  the  provisions  of  Florida  Statute 
 448.095 are incorporated herein by reference and hereby certifies it will comply with the same. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 77 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  5  of  7 

 ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC.  Concord Station CDD 

 Signature: ______________________________  Signature:  ______________________________ 

 Printed Name:  __________________________  Printed Name:  __________________________ 

 Title:  ____________________________________  Title:  ___________________________________ 

 Date:  _________________________________  Date:  ________________________________ 

 Please Remit All Payments to:  Customer’s Address  for Notice Purposes: 

 1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H  ____________________________________________ 
 Little Rock AR 72202 

 ____________________________________________ 
 Please Mail All Contracts to: 

 ____________________________________________ 
 2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450 
 Virginia Beach, VA 23453 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 78 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  6  of  7 

 SCHEDULE A - SERVICES 

 Wetland Management  : 
 1.  Wetland Buffers will be inspected on a  two (2) times per month  basis. 
 2.  The treatment out up to 30 feet will include all FLEPPC Category 1 & 2 species and 

 nuisance vines. 
 3.  All Species will be killed in place with an approved herbicide, 
 4.  This proposal does not include debris removal or disposal. 

 Service Reporting: 
 1.  Customer will be provided with a service report  detailing all of the work 

 performed as part of this contract after each visit. 

 Permitting (when applicable): 
 1.  SOLitude staff will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Obtaining any Federal, state, or local permits required to perform any work 
 specified in this contract where applicable. 

 b.  Attending any public hearings or meetings with regulators as required in support 
 of the permitting process. 

 c.  Filing of any notices or year-end reports with the appropriate agency as required 
 by any related permit. 

 d.  Notifying the Customer of any restrictions or special conditions put on the site with 
 respect to any permit received, where applicable. 

 Customer Responsibilities (when applicable): 
 1.  Customer will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Providing information required for the permit application process upon request. 
 b.  Providing Certified Abutters List for abutter notification where required. 
 c.  Perform any public filings or recordings with any agency or commission 

 associated with the permitting process, if required. 
 d.  Compliance with any other special requirements or conditions required by the 

 local municipality. 
 e.  Compliance and enforcement of temporary water-use restrictions where 

 applicable. 

 General Qualifications  : 
 1.  Company is a licensed pesticide applicator in the state in which service is to be 

 provided. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 79 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  7  of  7 

 2.  Individual Applicators are Certified Pesticide Applicators in Aquatics, Public Health, 
 Forestry, Right of Way, and Turf/Ornamental as required in the state in which service is 
 to be provided. 

 3.  Company is a SePRO Preferred Applicator and dedicated Steward of Water.  Each 
 individual applicator has been trained and educated in the water quality testing and 
 analysis required for prescriptive site-specific water quality management and utilizes an 
 integrated approach that encompasses all aspects of ecologically balanced 
 management.  Each applicator has received extensive training in the proper selection, 
 use, and application of all aquatic herbicides, algaecides, adjuvants, and water 
 quality enhancement products necessary to properly treat our Customers’ lakes and 
 ponds as part of an overall integrated pest management program. 

 4.  Company guarantees that all products used for treatment are EPA registered and 
 labeled as appropriate and safe for use in lakes, ponds, and other aquatic sites, and 
 are being applied in a manner consistent with their labeling. 

 5.  All pesticide applications made directly to the water or along the shoreline for the 
 control of algae, aquatic weeds, or other aquatic pests as specified in this contract will 
 meet or exceed all of the Company’s legal regulatory requirements as set forth by the 
 EPA and related state agencies for NPDES and FIFRA.     Company will perform 
 treatments that are consistent with NPDES compliance standards as applicable in and 
 determined by the specific state in which treatments are made.  All staff will be fully 
 trained to perform all applications in compliance with all federal, state, and local law. 

 6.  Company will furnish the personnel, vehicles, boats, equipment, materials, and other 
 items required to provide the foregoing at its expense. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 80 of 175



EXHIBIT 12 

Page 81 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 SERVICES CONTRACT 

 CUSTOMER NAME: Concord Station CDD - Acct # 5466 
 SUBMITTED TO: Darryl Adams 
 CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE: April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025 
 SUBMITTED BY: Camila Morao 
 SERVICES: Annual Maintenance Service Renewal for One Hundred Ten (110) Waterways, Sites 2 through 23 
 and 25 through 56 and 58 through 111 (88,475 total linear feet perimeter) 

 This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date indicated above and is by and between 
 SOLitude Lake Management, LLC (“SOLitude” or the “Company”) and the customer identified above (the 
 “Customer”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 1.  The Services  .  SOLitude will provide services at  the Customer’s property as described in Schedule A 
 attached hereto: 

 2.  PAYMENT TERMS.  The Annual Contract Price is  $69,900.00  .  SOLitude shall invoice Customer the total 
 of  $5,825.00 per month  for the Services to be provided  under this Agreement. The term of this agreement is 
 for a period of twelve (12) months, with payment invoiced on the first day of each month, reminding them 
 that a contract payment is due by the end of that same month.  The customer is obligated to pay each 
 monthly contract payment per the terms of this contract, without any obligation on the part of SOLitude 
 to invoice or send any other sort of reminder or notice. Due to the seasonality of these services, and the 
 disproportionate amount of time and materials dedicated to providing these services during some times 
 of the year as compared to others, based on the season, weather patterns, and other natural factors, the 
 amount billed and paid to date is not necessarily equivalent to the amount of work performed to date. 
 The Customer will be liable for any returned check fees and any collection costs, including reasonable 
 attorney fees and court costs, for any invoices not otherwise timely paid, and interest at the rate of 1% per 
 month may be added to all unpaid invoices.  Should the work performed be subject to any local, state, or 
 federal jurisdiction, agency, or other organization of authority for sales or other taxes or fees in addition to 
 those expressly covered by this contract, the customer will be invoiced and responsible for paying said 
 additional taxes in addition to the contract price and other fees above.  SOLitude shall be reimbursed by 
 the customer for any non-routine expenses, administrative fees, compliance fees, or any other similar 
 expense that are incurred as a result of requirements placed on SOLitude by the customer that are not 
 covered specifically by the written specifications of this contract. 

 3.  TERM AND EXPIRATION.  This Agreement is for an  annual management program as described in the 
 Schedule A attached.  Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 82 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  2  of  8 

 by the parties in writing. Contract  will automatically renew annually at the end of the contract effective 
 date for subsequent one (1) year terms, with a six percent (6%) escalation in the Annual Contract Price 
 each year, under the same terms, specifications, and conditions as set forth by this contract, unless either 
 party gives written notice of cancellation thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of this contract, or 
 subsequent renewal contracts. 

 4.  PRICING.  The  Company  reserves  the  right  to  annually  increase  the  amount  charged  for  the 
 services  beyond  the  escalation  percentage  stated  in  the  TERM  AND  EXPIRATION  above,  which  shall  be 
 communicated by written notice to the Customer, which notice may be by invoice. 

 5.  TERMINATION.  If  SOLitude  terminates  your  service  for  nonpayment  or  other  default  before  the  end 
 of  the  Services  Contract,  if  the  Customer  terminates  this  Services  Contract  for  any  reason  other  than  in 
 accordance  with  the  cancellation  policy  outlined  above  ,  or  in  the  event  this  Contract  does  not 
 automatically  renew  and  the  customer  terminates  it  before  the  termination  date,  Customer  agrees  to  pay 
 SOLitude,  in  addition  to  all  other  amounts  owed,  an  Early  Termination  Fee  in  the  amount  specified  below 
 (“Early  Termination  Fee”).  The  Customer’s  Early  Termination  Fee  will  be  50%  of  the  remaining  value  of  the 
 Contracted  Price.  The  Early  Termination  Fee  is  not  a  penalty,  but  rather  a  charge  to  compensate 
 SOLitude  for  the  Customer’s  failure  to  satisfy  the  Services  Contract  on  which  the  Customer’s  rate  plan  is 
 based. 

 6.  INSURANCE  AND  LIMITATION  OF  LIABILITY  .  SOLitude  will  maintain  general  liability  and  property 
 damage  insurance  as  necessary  given  the  scope  and  nature  of  the  Services.  The  Company  will  be 
 responsible  for  those  damages,  claims,  causes  of  action,  injuries  or  legal  costs  to  the  extent  of  its  own 
 direct  negligence  or  misconduct,  and  then  only  to  an  amount  not  to  exceed  the  annual  value  of  this 
 Agreement.  In  no  event  will  any  party  to  this  Agreement  be  liable  to  the  other  for  incidental, 
 consequential or purely economic damages. 

 7.  FORCE  MAJEURE  .  The  Company  shall  not  be  liable  for  any  delay  in  performing  the  Services,  nor 
 liable for any failure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable control. 

 8.  ANTI-CORRUPTION  AND  BRIBERY.  Each  party  represents  that  neither  it  nor  anyone  acting  on  its 
 behalf  has  offered,  given,  requested  or  accepted  any  undue  financial  or  other  advantage  of  any  kind  in 
 entering  into  this  Agreement,  and  that  it  will  comply  with  all  applicable  laws  and  regulations  pertaining  to 
 corruption, competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 9.  GOVERNING  LAW  .  This  Agreement  shall  be  governed  and  construed  in  accordance  with  the  laws 
 of the state in which the Services are performed. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 83 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  3  of  8 

 10.  ENTIRE  AGREEMENT  .  This  Agreement  constitutes  the  entire  agreement  between  the  parties  with 
 respect  to  the  subject  matter  and  replaces  any  prior  agreements  or  understandings,  whether  in  writing  or 
 otherwise.  This  Agreement  may  not  be  modified  or  amended  except  by  written  agreement  executed  by 
 both  parties.  In  the  event  that  any  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  determined  to  be  void,  invalid,  or 
 unenforceable,  the  validity  and  enforceability  of  the  remaining  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 affected. 

 11.  NOTICE  .  Any  written  notice  provided  under  this  Agreement  may  be  sent  via  overnight  mail, 
 certified  mail,  hand  delivery  or  electronic  mail  with  delivery  confirmation,  to  the  individuals  and  addresses 
 listed below. 

 12.  BINDING  .  This  Agreement  shall  inure  to  the  benefit  of  and  be  binding  upon  the  legal 
 representatives and successors of the parties. 

 13.  FUEL/TRANSPORTATION  SURCHARGE  .  Like  many  other  companies  that  are  impacted  by  the  price  of 
 gasoline,  a  rise  in  gasoline  prices  may  necessitate  a  fuel  surcharge.  As  such,  the  Company  reserves  the 
 right  to  add  a  fuel  surcharge  to  Customer's  invoice  for  any  increase  in  the  cost  of  fuel  as  measured  above 
 the  same  time  period  in  the  prior  year  (by  the  National  U.S.  Average  Motor  Gasoline-Regular  Fuel  Price  per 
 Gallon  Index  reported  by  the  U.S.  Department  of  Energy).  The  surcharge  may  be  adjusted  monthly  (up  or 
 down) with the price of gasoline. 

 14.  DISCLAIMER  .  SOLitude  is  not  responsible  for  the  failure  of  any  treatment,  equipment  installation,  or 
 other  work  that  result  from  dam  or  other  structural  failures,  severe  weather  and  storms,  flooding,  or  other 
 acts of God that are outside of the control of SOLitude. 
 Customers understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of 
 the products used to treat lakes and ponds.  The customer is responsible for notifying SOLitude in advance 
 of the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds 
 for irrigation purposes.  The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the 
 irrigation of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of treated water being used by 
 the customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of SOLitude. 
 Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the 
 labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, there is a risk under 
 certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops.  This risk is most severe in times of extremely 
 hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen 
 levels are naturally at their lowest levels.  Oftentimes lakes and ponds will experience natural fish kills under 
 these conditions even if no work is performed.  Every effort, to include the method and timing of 
 application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to 
 avoid such problems.  However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of 
 the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of SOLitude that will result in the death of some 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 84 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  4  of  8 

 fish and other aquatic life.  The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain 
 even if no work was performed.  The customer agrees to hold SOLitude harmless for any issues with fish or 
 other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct control of 
 SOLitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of SOLitude. 

 15.  NONPERFORMANCE  .  In  the  case  of  any  default  on  the  part  of  the  Company  with  respect  to  any  of 
 the  terms  of  this  Agreement,  the  Customer  shall  give  written  notice  thereof,  and  if  said  default  is  not  made 
 good  within  (30)  Thirty  Days,  the  Customer  shall  notify  the  Company  in  writing  that  there  has  been  a 
 breach  of  the  Agreement.  The  Company  in  case  of  such  breach  shall  be  entitled  to  receive  payment 
 only  for  work  completed  prior  to  said  breach,  so  long  as  the  total  paid  hereunder  does  not  exceed  the 
 Contract sum. 

 16.  E-Verify  .  Solitude  Lake  Management  LLC  utilizes  the  federal  E-Verify  program  in  contracts  with 
 public  employers  as  required  by  Florida  State  law,  and  acknowledges  all  the  provisions  of  Florida  Statute 
 448.095 are incorporated herein by reference and hereby certifies it will comply with the same. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 85 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  5  of  8 

 ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC.  Concord Station CDD 

 Signature: ______________________________  Signature:  ______________________________ 

 Printed Name:  __________________________  Printed Name:  __________________________ 

 Title:  ____________________________________  Title:  ___________________________________ 

 Date:  _________________________________  Date:  ________________________________ 

 Please Remit All Payments to:  Customer’s Address  for Notice Purposes: 

 1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H  ____________________________________________ 
 Little Rock AR 72202 

 ____________________________________________ 
 Please Mail All Contracts to: 

 ____________________________________________ 
 2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450 
 Virginia Beach, VA 23453 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 86 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  6  of  8 

 SCHEDULE A - SERVICES 

 Aquatic Weed Control  : 
 1.  Pond(s) will be inspected on a  seven (7) times  per  month  basis. 
 2.  Any growth of undesirable aquatic weeds and vegetation found in the pond(s) with 

 each inspection shall be treated and controlled through the application of aquatic 
 herbicides and aquatic surfactants as required to control the specific varieties of 
 aquatic weeds and vegetation found in the pond(s) at the time of application. 

 3.  Invasive and unwanted submersed and floating vegetation will be treated and 
 controlled preventatively and curatively each spring and early summer through the use 
 of systemic herbicides at the rate appropriate for control of the target species. 
 Application rates will be designed to allow for selective control of unwanted species 
 while allowing for desirable species of submersed and emergent wetland plants to 
 prosper. 

 Shoreline Weed Control  : 
 1.  Shoreline areas will be inspected on a  seven (7) times  per month  basis. 
 2.  Any growth of cattails, phragmites, or other unwanted shoreline vegetation found within 

 the pond areas shall be treated and controlled through the application of aquatic 
 herbicides and aquatic surfactants as required for control of the plants present at time 
 of application. 

 3.  Any growth of unwanted plants or weeds growing in areas where stone has been 
 installed for bank stabilization and erosion control shall be treated and controlled 
 through the application of aquatic herbicides and aquatic surfactants as required to 
 control the unwanted growth present at the time of application. 

 Pond Algae Control  : 
 1.  Pond(s) will be inspected on a  seven (7) times  per  month  basis. 
 2.  Any algae found in the pond(s) with each inspection shall be treated and controlled 

 through the application of algaecides, aquatic herbicides, and aquatic surfactants as 
 needed for control of the algae present at the time of service. 

 Pond Dye  : 
 1.  Pond Dye  will be applied to the pond(s) on an  as needed  basis.  A combination of blue 

 and/or black dye will be used as required to maintain a dark natural water color. 

 Trash Removal  : 
 1.  Trash will be removed from the pond(s) with each service and disposed off site.  Any 

 large item or debris that is not easily and reasonably removable by one person during 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 87 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  7  of  8 

 the routine visit will be removed with the Customer’s approval for an additional fee. 
 Routine trash and debris removal services are for the pond areas only, and do not 
 include any trash or debris removal from the surrounding terrestrial (dry land) areas. 

 Littoral Shelf Control  : 
 1.  Littoral areas at  27, 34, 45, 46 and 55  will be inspected  and treated on an as-needed 

 basis to maintain compliance with governing agencies for the management of all 
 nuisance and exotic species. 

 2.  Maintenance of future littoral plantings may necessitate an increased service level at 
 an additional cost. 

 3.  All Species will be killed in place with an approved herbicide, 
 4.  This proposal does not include debris removal or disposal. 

 Service Reporting: 
 1.  Customer will be provided with a service report  detailing all of the work 

 performed as part of this contract after each visit. 

 Permitting (when applicable): 
 1.  SOLitude staff will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Obtaining any Federal, state, or local permits required to perform any work 
 specified in this contract where applicable. 

 b.  Attending any public hearings or meetings with regulators as required in support 
 of the permitting process. 

 c.  Filing of any notices or year-end reports with the appropriate agency as required 
 by any related permit. 

 d.  Notifying the Customer of any restrictions or special conditions put on the site with 
 respect to any permit received, where applicable. 

 Customer Responsibilities (when applicable): 
 1.  Customer will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Providing information required for the permit application process upon request. 
 b.  Providing Certified Abutters List for abutter notification where required. 
 c.  Perform any public filings or recordings with any agency or commission 

 associated with the permitting process, if required. 
 d.  Compliance with any other special requirements or conditions required by the 

 local municipality. 
 e.  Compliance and enforcement of temporary water-use restrictions where 

 applicable. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 88 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  8  of  8 

 General Qualifications  : 
 1.  Company is a licensed pesticide applicator in the state in which service is to be 

 provided. 
 2.  Individual Applicators are Certified Pesticide Applicators in Aquatics, Public Health, 

 Forestry, Right of Way, and Turf/Ornamental as required in the state in which service is 
 to be provided. 

 3.  Company is a SePRO Preferred Applicator and dedicated Steward of Water.  Each 
 individual applicator has been trained and educated in the water quality testing and 
 analysis required for prescriptive site-specific water quality management and utilizes an 
 integrated approach that encompasses all aspects of ecologically balanced 
 management.  Each applicator has received extensive training in the proper selection, 
 use, and application of all aquatic herbicides, algaecides, adjuvants, and water 
 quality enhancement products necessary to properly treat our Customers’ lakes and 
 ponds as part of an overall integrated pest management program. 

 4.  Company guarantees that all products used for treatment are EPA registered and 
 labeled as appropriate and safe for use in lakes, ponds, and other aquatic sites, and 
 are being applied in a manner consistent with their labeling. 

 5.  All pesticide applications made directly to the water or along the shoreline for the 
 control of algae, aquatic weeds, or other aquatic pests as specified in this contract will 
 meet or exceed all of the Company’s legal regulatory requirements as set forth by the 
 EPA and related state agencies for NPDES and FIFRA.     Company will perform 
 treatments that are consistent with NPDES compliance standards as applicable in and 
 determined by the specific state in which treatments are made.  All staff will be fully 
 trained to perform all applications in compliance with all federal, state, and local law. 

 6.  Company will furnish the personnel, vehicles, boats, equipment, materials, and other 
 items required to provide the foregoing at its expense. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 89 of 175



EXHIBIT 13 

Page 90 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 SERVICES CONTRACT 

 CUSTOMER NAME: Concord Station CDD - Acct # 5466 
 SUBMITTED TO: Darryl Adams 
 CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE: April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025 
 SUBMITTED BY: Camila Morao 
 SERVICES: Annual Maintenance Service Renewal for Lab Services on Four (4) Lakes 

 This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date indicated above and is by and between 
 SOLitude Lake Management, LLC (“SOLitude” or the “Company”) and the customer identified above (the 
 “Customer”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 1.  The Services  .  SOLitude will provide services at  the Customer’s property as described in Schedule A 
 attached hereto: 

 2.  PAYMENT TERMS.  The Annual Contract Price is  $3,479.00  . SOLitude shall invoice Customer the total 
 of  $3,479.00 per annual  for the Services to be provided under this Agreement. The term of this agreement 
 is for a period of twelve (12) months, with payment invoiced on the first day of each month, reminding 
 them that a contract payment is due by the end of that same month.  The customer is obligated to pay 
 each monthly contract payment per the terms of this contract, without any obligation on the part of 
 SOLitude to invoice or send any other sort of reminder or notice. Due to the seasonality of these services, 
 and the disproportionate amount of time and materials dedicated to providing these services during 
 some times of the year as compared to others, based on the season, weather patterns, and other natural 
 factors, the amount billed and paid to date is not necessarily equivalent to the amount of work performed 
 to date. 
 The Customer will be liable for any returned check fees and any collection costs, including reasonable 
 attorney fees and court costs, for any invoices not otherwise timely paid, and interest at the rate of 1% per 
 month may be added to all unpaid invoices.  Should the work performed be subject to any local, state, or 
 federal jurisdiction, agency, or other organization of authority for sales or other taxes or fees in addition to 
 those expressly covered by this contract, the customer will be invoiced and responsible for paying said 
 additional taxes in addition to the contract price and other fees above.  SOLitude shall be reimbursed by 
 the customer for any non-routine expenses, administrative fees, compliance fees, or any other similar 
 expense that are incurred as a result of requirements placed on SOLitude by the customer that are not 
 covered specifically by the written specifications of this contract. 

 3.  TERM AND EXPIRATION.  This Agreement is for an  annual management program as described in the 
 Schedule A attached.  Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 91 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  2  of  7 

 by the parties in writing. Contract  will automatically renew annually at the end of the contract effective 
 date for subsequent one (1) year terms, with a six percent (6%) escalation in the Annual Contract Price 
 each year, under the same terms, specifications, and conditions as set forth by this contract, unless either 
 party gives written notice of cancellation thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of this contract, or 
 subsequent renewal contracts. 

 4.  PRICING.  The  Company  reserves  the  right  to  annually  increase  the  amount  charged  for  the 
 services  beyond  the  escalation  percentage  stated  in  the  TERM  AND  EXPIRATION  above,  which  shall  be 
 communicated by written notice to the Customer, which notice may be by invoice. 

 5.  TERMINATION.  If  SOLitude  terminates  your  service  for  nonpayment  or  other  default  before  the  end 
 of  the  Services  Contract,  if  the  Customer  terminates  this  Services  Contract  for  any  reason  other  than  in 
 accordance  with  the  cancellation  policy  outlined  above  ,  or  in  the  event  this  Contract  does  not 
 automatically  renew  and  the  customer  terminates  it  before  the  termination  date,  Customer  agrees  to  pay 
 SOLitude,  in  addition  to  all  other  amounts  owed,  an  Early  Termination  Fee  in  the  amount  specified  below 
 (“Early  Termination  Fee”).  The  Customer’s  Early  Termination  Fee  will  be  50%  of  the  remaining  value  of  the 
 Contracted  Price.  The  Early  Termination  Fee  is  not  a  penalty,  but  rather  a  charge  to  compensate 
 SOLitude  for  the  Customer’s  failure  to  satisfy  the  Services  Contract  on  which  the  Customer’s  rate  plan  is 
 based. 

 6.  INSURANCE  AND  LIMITATION  OF  LIABILITY  .  SOLitude  will  maintain  general  liability  and  property 
 damage  insurance  as  necessary  given  the  scope  and  nature  of  the  Services.  The  Company  will  be 
 responsible  for  those  damages,  claims,  causes  of  action,  injuries  or  legal  costs  to  the  extent  of  its  own 
 direct  negligence  or  misconduct,  and  then  only  to  an  amount  not  to  exceed  the  annual  value  of  this 
 Agreement.  In  no  event  will  any  party  to  this  Agreement  be  liable  to  the  other  for  incidental, 
 consequential or purely economic damages. 

 7.  FORCE  MAJEURE  .  The  Company  shall  not  be  liable  for  any  delay  in  performing  the  Services,  nor 
 liable for any failure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable control. 

 8.  ANTI-CORRUPTION  AND  BRIBERY.  Each  party  represents  that  neither  it  nor  anyone  acting  on  its 
 behalf  has  offered,  given,  requested  or  accepted  any  undue  financial  or  other  advantage  of  any  kind  in 
 entering  into  this  Agreement,  and  that  it  will  comply  with  all  applicable  laws  and  regulations  pertaining  to 
 corruption, competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 9.  GOVERNING  LAW  .  This  Agreement  shall  be  governed  and  construed  in  accordance  with  the  laws 
 of the state in which the Services are performed. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 92 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  3  of  7 

 10.  ENTIRE  AGREEMENT  .  This  Agreement  constitutes  the  entire  agreement  between  the  parties  with 
 respect  to  the  subject  matter  and  replaces  any  prior  agreements  or  understandings,  whether  in  writing  or 
 otherwise.  This  Agreement  may  not  be  modified  or  amended  except  by  written  agreement  executed  by 
 both  parties.  In  the  event  that  any  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  determined  to  be  void,  invalid,  or 
 unenforceable,  the  validity  and  enforceability  of  the  remaining  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 affected. 

 11.  NOTICE  .  Any  written  notice  provided  under  this  Agreement  may  be  sent  via  overnight  mail, 
 certified  mail,  hand  delivery  or  electronic  mail  with  delivery  confirmation,  to  the  individuals  and  addresses 
 listed below. 

 12.  BINDING  .  This  Agreement  shall  inure  to  the  benefit  of  and  be  binding  upon  the  legal 
 representatives and successors of the parties. 

 13.  FUEL/TRANSPORTATION  SURCHARGE  .  Like  many  other  companies  that  are  impacted  by  the  price  of 
 gasoline,  a  rise  in  gasoline  prices  may  necessitate  a  fuel  surcharge.  As  such,  the  Company  reserves  the 
 right  to  add  a  fuel  surcharge  to  Customer's  invoice  for  any  increase  in  the  cost  of  fuel  as  measured  above 
 the  same  time  period  in  the  prior  year  (by  the  National  U.S.  Average  Motor  Gasoline-Regular  Fuel  Price  per 
 Gallon  Index  reported  by  the  U.S.  Department  of  Energy).  The  surcharge  may  be  adjusted  monthly  (up  or 
 down) with the price of gasoline. 

 14.  DISCLAIMER  .  SOLitude  is  not  responsible  for  the  failure  of  any  treatment,  equipment  installation,  or 
 other  work  that  result  from  dam  or  other  structural  failures,  severe  weather  and  storms,  flooding,  or  other 
 acts of God that are outside of the control of SOLitude. 
 Customers understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of 
 the products used to treat lakes and ponds.  The customer is responsible for notifying SOLitude in advance 
 of the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds 
 for irrigation purposes.  The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the 
 irrigation of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of treated water being used by 
 the customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of SOLitude. 
 Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the 
 labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, there is a risk under 
 certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops.  This risk is most severe in times of extremely 
 hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen 
 levels are naturally at their lowest levels.  Oftentimes lakes and ponds will experience natural fish kills under 
 these conditions even if no work is performed.  Every effort, to include the method and timing of 
 application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to 
 avoid such problems.  However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of 
 the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of SOLitude that will result in the death of some 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 93 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  4  of  7 

 fish and other aquatic life.  The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain 
 even if no work was performed.  The customer agrees to hold SOLitude harmless for any issues with fish or 
 other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct control of 
 SOLitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of SOLitude. 

 15.  NONPERFORMANCE  .  In  the  case  of  any  default  on  the  part  of  the  Company  with  respect  to  any  of 
 the  terms  of  this  Agreement,  the  Customer  shall  give  written  notice  thereof,  and  if  said  default  is  not  made 
 good  within  (30)  Thirty  Days,  the  Customer  shall  notify  the  Company  in  writing  that  there  has  been  a 
 breach  of  the  Agreement.  The  Company  in  case  of  such  breach  shall  be  entitled  to  receive  payment 
 only  for  work  completed  prior  to  said  breach,  so  long  as  the  total  paid  hereunder  does  not  exceed  the 
 Contract sum. 

 16.  E-Verify  .  Solitude  Lake  Management  LLC  utilizes  the  federal  E-Verify  program  in  contracts  with 
 public  employers  as  required  by  Florida  State  law,  and  acknowledges  all  the  provisions  of  Florida  Statute 
 448.095 are incorporated herein by reference and hereby certifies it will comply with the same. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 94 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  5  of  7 

 ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC.  Concord Station CDD 

 Signature: ______________________________  Signature:  ______________________________ 

 Printed Name:  __________________________  Printed Name:  __________________________ 

 Title:  ____________________________________  Title:  ___________________________________ 

 Date:  _________________________________  Date:  ________________________________ 

 Please Remit All Payments to:  Customer’s Address  for Notice Purposes: 

 1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H  ____________________________________________ 
 Little Rock AR 72202 

 ____________________________________________ 
 Please Mail All Contracts to: 

 ____________________________________________ 
 2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450 
 Virginia Beach, VA 23453 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 95 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  6  of  7 

 SCHEDULE A - SERVICES 

 Water Quality Testing  : 
 1.  Pond water samples will be taken and tested  one (1) time per year on 4 (four)  sites to 

 be determined by SOLitude Lake Management  for the following parameters: 
 ●  Phosphorus Jar Test:  Four (4) Total Phosphorus Tests as varying Alum doses, pH 

 titration and (1) Total Alkalinity. 
 ●  Clarita Data:  4) Turbidity reading at varying Alum doses 
 ●  Standard Lake Assessment:  Water Column Profile with DO, Temperature, (2) 

 pH, Depth, Secchi with (2) Total Phosphorus, (2) Total Nitrogen, (2) Nitrogen 
 Ammonia 

 1.  The results of the tests along with recommendations and analysis of the results will be 
 provided to the Customer in a written report following each testing period. 

 2.  Any data collected that needs immediate action to resolve an issue will be brought to 
 the Customer’s attention at once. 

 Service Reporting: 
 1.  Customer will be provided with a service report  detailing all of the work 

 performed as part of this contract after each visit. 

 Permitting (when applicable): 
 1.  SOLitude staff will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Obtaining any Federal, state, or local permits required to perform any work 
 specified in this contract where applicable. 

 b.  Attending any public hearings or meetings with regulators as required in support 
 of the permitting process. 

 c.  Filing of any notices or year-end reports with the appropriate agency as required 
 by any related permit. 

 d.  Notifying the Customer of any restrictions or special conditions put on the site with 
 respect to any permit received, where applicable. 

 Customer Responsibilities (when applicable): 
 1.  Customer will be responsible for the following: 

 a.  Providing information required for the permit application process upon request. 
 b.  Providing Certified Abutters List for abutter notification where required. 
 c.  Perform any public filings or recordings with any agency or commission 

 associated with the permitting process, if required. 
 d.  Compliance with any other special requirements or conditions required by the 

 local municipality. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 96 of 175



 Services Contract - CM 
 Page  7  of  7 

 e.  Compliance and enforcement of temporary water-use restrictions where 
 applicable. 

 General Qualifications  : 
 1.  Company is a licensed pesticide applicator in the state in which service is to be 

 provided. 
 2.  Individual Applicators are Certified Pesticide Applicators in Aquatics, Public Health, 

 Forestry, Right of Way, and Turf/Ornamental as required in the state in which service is 
 to be provided. 

 3.  Company is a SePRO Preferred Applicator and dedicated Steward of Water.  Each 
 individual applicator has been trained and educated in the water quality testing and 
 analysis required for prescriptive site-specific water quality management and utilizes an 
 integrated approach that encompasses all aspects of ecologically balanced 
 management.  Each applicator has received extensive training in the proper selection, 
 use, and application of all aquatic herbicides, algaecides, adjuvants, and water 
 quality enhancement products necessary to properly treat our Customers’ lakes and 
 ponds as part of an overall integrated pest management program. 

 4.  Company guarantees that all products used for treatment are EPA registered and 
 labeled as appropriate and safe for use in lakes, ponds, and other aquatic sites, and 
 are being applied in a manner consistent with their labeling. 

 5.  All pesticide applications made directly to the water or along the shoreline for the 
 control of algae, aquatic weeds, or other aquatic pests as specified in this contract will 
 meet or exceed all of the Company’s legal regulatory requirements as set forth by the 
 EPA and related state agencies for NPDES and FIFRA.     Company will perform 
 treatments that are consistent with NPDES compliance standards as applicable in and 
 determined by the specific state in which treatments are made.  All staff will be fully 
 trained to perform all applications in compliance with all federal, state, and local law. 

 6.  Company will furnish the personnel, vehicles, boats, equipment, materials, and other 
 items required to provide the foregoing at its expense. 

 Compe��vely  Sensi�ve  &  Proprietary  Materials  –  The  informa�on  contained  herein  is  the  intellectual  property  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management. 
 Recipient  may  not  disclose  to  any  outside  party  any  proprietary  informa�on,  processes,  or  pricing  contained  in  this  document  or  any  of  its 
 a�achments  without  the  prior  wri�en  consent  of  SŌLitude  Lake  Management.  This  document  is  provided  to  the  recipient  in  good  faith  and  it  shall 
 be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informa�on contained herein confiden�al  . 

 888.480.LAKE (5253)  |  SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 
Page 97 of 175



EXHIBIT 14 

Page 98 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Page 99 of 175



Page 100 of 175



Page 101 of 175



Page 102 of 175



Page 103 of 175



Page 104 of 175



Page 105 of 175



Page 106 of 175



EXHIBIT 15 

Page 107 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



1

Larry Krause

Subject: Concord Station: Removal of Trees from CDD Property at 3103 Chessington Dr. 

From: Christiaan Van Helden <cvanhelden@yellowstonelandscape.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 2:40 PM 

To: Larry Krause <larry@breezehome.com> 

Subject: Re: Concord Station: Removal of Trees from CDD Property at 3103 Chessington Dr.  

 

Good afternoon, Larry. I had made contact with the resident who stated she had been in contact with 

Darryl to see when someone was coming by to show her which trees she needed to remove. This was the 

reason why the trees have not been removed due to the fact no one has been by to show her which trees. 

After inspecting the trees there will be a larger issue with just removing them. Upon my inspection the 

resident could flush cut the trees but, after a bit the root system would start to decay & erosion would 

start to take place into the pond. This has already started on these banks. If the resident was to dig them 

up the holes would be there where the roots were & erosion would start immediately. The trees have 

been on the banks for 7 years now & the root system has well substantiated itself into the pond banks. As 

far as getting my equipment through there, our 72" mowers could fit. My recommendation would be to 

leave the trees where there are. Please let me know how you would like to proceed on this matter.   

 

Christiaan Van Helden, Account Manager 

Yellowstone Landscape – Tampa North 

  

  

  

  

Page 108 of 175



2

  

  

  

  

  

Page 109 of 175



3

  

Page 110 of 175



3103 Chessington Drive 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111 of 175



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112 of 175



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113 of 175



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114 of 175



EXHIBIT 16 

Page 115 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



3407 Chessington Drive – Area Behind Home 

 

Page 116 of 175



 

 

Page 117 of 175



 

 

Page 118 of 175



Proposal #347988
Date: 09/07/2023

From: Joshua Oliva

Proposal For Location

Concord Station CDD 18636 Mentmore Boulevard
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
18636 Mentmore Blvd
Land O Lakes, FL 34638

main:
mobile:
dbwallace@rizzetta.com

Land O Lakes, FL 34638

Property Name: Concord Station CDD

Area behind 3407 Chessington Dr. - Cutback Terms: Net 30

Price to cutback area behind Area behind 3407 Chessington Dr.

This price is for the cutback area behind homes away from encroaching homeowner fencing. 

Dump Fees included. 

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Labor 1.00 $1,577.120 $1,577.12

Client Notes

Yellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211 Page 1 of 3

Page 119 of 175



SUBTOTAL $1,577.12

Signature SALES TAX $0.00

x TOTAL $1,577.12

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

Yellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211 Page 2 of 3

Page 120 of 175



Contact Assigned To

Joshua Oliva
Print Name:

Office:
joliva@yellowstonelandscape.com

Title:

Date:

Yellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211 Page 3 of 3

Page 121 of 175



EXHIBIT 17 

Page 122 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 
1 

 

 
Concord Station Clubhouse Amenity Managers Report 

18636 Mentmore Blvd. Land O Lakes, FL 34638 

Phone: 813-909-4569 • Email: concordstation@breezehome.com 
 

Operations / Administration March, 2024 

• Square or payment system for deposits, payments and reimbursements – pending 

• Strongroom setup - complete 

• ADT alarm contact change - complete 

• DCSI contact changed; current Bosch controls - complete 

• Review all contracts of current vendors – ongoing 

• Overnight parking: Confirm if we are allowing overnight parking; if so, how long and where would 
they park?   

• Spectrum change of contact and setup VM; pending  
o Bring to attention that communication equipment is located outside in exterior closet with no 

ventilation or conditioning; technician coming to check.  

• Lightening Sensor and equipment – awaiting information from past manager; costs and 
maintenance were approved by board previously. 

• Lighting at Tennis Courts afterhours – several requests from residents – pending 

• Propose new cleaner(s) and/or part-time housekeeper on staff - Catherine Bustamante; 

813.838.7423 - proposal received 

o Housekeepers/cleaners clean 

▪ Current cleaners are only cleaning gym 1 a week per conversation, and surface clean 

and mop.  

• HOA – updated hours and dates starting March.  
o will work with Nicole on getting all leases up to date and ensure board approval before amenity 

usage is granted.  Policy being reviewed and changed.  
o Board of Elections – dates, times of drop-off/pick-up on main calendar. Storage secured;– 3/15 

Drop-off; 3/18 setup; 3/19 Elections; 3/22 Pickup.   

• Resident requires update on damage to roadway from last meeting of February 8th. States it’s 
along CDD property and has turned in all information discussed at last meeting.  

• Confirm Holiday Hours for community Main calendar.  

Beautification Process: 

• Lobby – cleaned, sanitized and restaged - complete 
• Gym - full Covid sanitize, completed – suggested to do monthly 
• Picnic tables - sanitize & clean – completed – suggested monthly 
• Powerwashing of all exterior furniture, tables - spring cleanup – in process 
• Painting of interior (maintenance) 

• Walls 

Page 123 of 175



 
2 

• Trim and doors  
• Painting of exterior (maintenance): 

• garbage can holders 
• grill  
• picnic tables  
• benches at volleyball courts (2) 

 
Items waiting for supplier updates: 

• Broken fence on Mentmore Blvd just before Ballentrae neighborhood. Confirmed it is on CDD 
property.   
o New Tampa Fence who originally installed has been contacted for proposals – pending 
o Unleashed Fencing – awaiting proposal - pending 

 

  
 

• Exterior Building Painting - Joe R. Painting - 813.595.1325; proposal received – pending approval. 

• Conservation Area located at Lefays Point – received proposal from Poop 911 - cost is $400 plus $5 
weekly – pending approval 

• Door Signage – received quotes from Fast Signs -pending approval. 

• Roly's Vending Services – picked up old vending machine (3/5), will refurbish and return for added 
amenity to concord residents.  No costs incurred.  

 
 
 

Page 124 of 175



 
3 

• Pool Table repair and resurface:  
o Billiard Man – quote is for $600 for replacement of felt, leveling, etc. – pending approval 

 

 
 

• Security systems: discuss New security for cameras, gates: quotes submitted; two-bathroom 
magnets, 3 additional doors at playground gates inoperable. Current Bosch system cannot get parts 
for replacement - pending approval 
o For Splash pad; new lock & arm needs to be added; unable to exit when on inside – code issue 

• Fitness Logic Company – maintenance was completed 5/8; awaiting arm part for stepper - pending  
 

Maintenance Pending:  
• Signage for doors:  

o Proposals submitted from Fast Signs (Breeze account) 
• Sidewalk Repair pending;  

o Barry will call beginning of March to schedule for Mid-march - pending 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125 of 175



 
4 

• Tree Removal - 3103 Chessington Dr:  
o Was suggested to leave by Yellowstone and Concord Maintenance 

 

• Pool Deck Shower: 
o previously approved but vendor was never setup.  Three step process, see below:  

• Pampering Plumber was called on 2/13 scheduled for 2/27; removed old pipe.   
• 2)awaiting proposals from Todd Homes and add’l vendor for concrete (must be licensed, 

as rebar needs to be included as well as drainage);  
• 3) Install of new tower being held by Pampering plumber (10 hours estimate) thereafter. 

Plumber is holding tower until concrete pad is installed.  
o Proposal approx size slab 6 " w rebar - assume 3' x 3'  for Shower platform pool shower 

enclosed.  Will need to remove pavers and then cut in pavers and seal joint. Water resistant 
textured non slip. 

 

     
 
 
 

 

Page 126 of 175



 
5 

• Splash Pad Repair:  
o Actuator not functional; Sean repaired 3/6/2024 and operable.  Invoice pending.   

 
• Splash Pad Resurfacing: 

o Two proposals sent from Pool Decks of Tampa; Craig. 1 for full same colors with logo and 2 with 
suggested colors and option for less expensive and wear long-term. 

o Water fountains:  Proper chemicals will cleanup - proposals pending w/cleaners 

• Fountain on Lake Patience down due to outage – continually trips; looking for information on vendor 
– pending 

• Community Water Fountains – resident asked about changing of colored lights within fountains; 
manager will reach out for more information – pending 

• Clubhouse Water Fountains – purchasing certain cleaners to remove rust - pending  

• Sub-Community Entry Signage: 
o The Manors @ Hampstead, Heath Ct and Wellington@ Buckinghanshire are in disrepair and 

require reconstruction of Arbor and finish with new paint or stain – quotes for repair of wood 
pending. 

o The Enclave @Alexandrea Lee and the Wellington @ Tuckerton Signs will need to be power 
washed and then repainted – in-process. 

o The Retreat and Waterford signs are built differently and do not have Wood Arbors and do not 
require repair or paint at this time 

o All other Wood Arbor Signs have been reconstructed and have new paint and do not require 
any work at this time 
 

        
 
Newsletters: 

• Welcome from Breeze sent to all existing residents in eBlast - sent Thursday, 2/15 

• Continuing Community mail chimp until Breeze Official Newsletter is completed – pending. 
 

 
 

Page 127 of 175



 
6 

 
Event Room Rental Current Issues;  
Review current rental policies within the current Amenity Facility Policies (printed for review). 

• Residents have been allowed to stay after designated operation hours. 
• Residents are booking for their friends and family who are flying in from other states and using without 

the resident present. 
• Residents were given approval for Food Trucks to block entry and main means of egress.  
• Residents are using the entire Clubhouse; others cannot use.  
• Residents have been given access to pass through the office where confidential information is housed.  

 
Event Room Current Rentals booked and paid (deposits are pending): 
Previous bookings from 2/10th to date need refunds for deposits – see Rental book.   
Saturday - 3/09 – 11am – 4pm – am party with another following. 
Saturday - 3/09 - 5pm - 11pm (overage) 
Sunday - 3/10 – 10am – 8pm (overage)  
Saturday – 3/16 – 12pm – 5pm  
Saturday – 3/23 – 10am – 4pm  
Sunday – 3/24 – 10am – 4pm 
Saturday – 4/06 – 4pm – 10pm (resident cancelled) 
Saturday – 4/06 – 11am – 4pm  
Saturday – 4/13 – 4pm – 10pm 
Sunday – 4/16 – 10am – 8pm (overage) 
Saturday – 4/20 – 5pm – 11pm (overage) 
Saturday – 4/27 – 12pm – 5pm  
Saturday – 5/4 – 12pm – 5pm  
Saturday – 5/5 – 10am – 6pm 
Saturday – 5/11 – 10am – 6pm 
Sunday – 5/18 – 3pm – 8pm (overage) 
Saturday – 6/1 – 5pm – 10pm (overage) 
Sunday – 6/2 – 10am - 8pm (overage) 
Saturday – 6/8 – 5pm - 10pm (overage) 
Saturday – 6/9 – 11am – 4pm  
 
Event Room Proposals for Approval: 
All bookings must go through the Amenity Manager for main calendar bookings to avoid overbooking and 
ensure no conflicts with CDD/HOA meetings. 

• Review of Current forms (propose to revise forms & costs) 
o No moving of furniture without permission (tables only) – wear and tear on furniture 
o Outside Vendors must give COI/W9 
o Proposing of adding 2 additional “rental” zones; outside pavilion & adult game room 
o Only 1 party should be booked daily per venue for the 5-hour block 
o Request to increase amount Security Deposit  

District Open Field Rentals and/or Reserves – pending board approval 

 

 

 

 

Page 128 of 175



 
7 

Events: 

NOTE: Breeze has honored all current existing events and/or group as well as the rentals since coming on 
board 2/13.  Below are current and/or previously approved Groups and Events:  
March Calendar:  

• March 1st - 1st Friday Family Games Night w/snacks ($230) 
o Lenny’s Ice Truck (added as dessert) 

• March 8th - 2nd Friday - Adult Game Night w/snacks ($150) 
• March 15th - 3rd Friday – Food Truck Night & St Patty’s Pool Party 

o DJ Jesse poolside ($300) 
• March 22nd – 4th Friday - Adult Social Night w/snacks ($150) 
• March 24th - Easter Market (large event $4,000) 

        
 
Events Upcoming Proposed Events – pending approvals: 
April: 

• April 5th – 1st Friday – Family Games & Fun Night adding entertainment and/or outside vendors, shows, 
teen nights, etc. ($150) 

• April 6th & 7th – Community Garage Sale (handled by HOA) 
• April 12th – 2nd Friday – Adult Games Night – BYOB  
• April 19th – 3rd Friday – Food Truck Fridays w/Dive-In Movies – ($700) pending. 
• April 26th – 4th Friday – Adult Social w/Entertainment; BYOB, lite snacks – ($400) pending. 
•  

    
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129 of 175



 
8 

May: 
• May 3rd - 1st Friday – Family Games & Fun Night adding entertainment and/or outside vendors, shows, 

teen nights, etc. ($150)  
• May 10th - 2nd Friday – Adult Games Night – BYOB ($150) 
• May 11th – Saturday – Mother’s Day Market w/outside Vendor; freebee’s, etc. – outside vendor service  
• May 17th - 3rd Friday – Food Truck Fridays – no entertainment due to large Holiday event 
• May 24th - 4th Friday – Adult Social w/Entertainment; BYOB, lite snacks – pending ($100) 
• May 25th – Memorial Day Pool Party; BBQ Truck, Desserts, DJ Chris w/Staar Entertainment - Tribute to 

Veterans – pending ($600) 
 

         
 
Summer Plan: 
June, July & August will repeat above awaiting proposals to offer afterschool programs and sports camps for 
Summer fun:   

• PROtential Sports Summer Sports Camps & After School programs (additional costs to parents, but 
discounted).  

https://protentialsports.com/sports/ 
 
Winter Proposals to be given in August to secure vendors.  
 
Current Clubs and/or Vendors:  
Avanti Rith Yogi (resident): 

• Wednesdays – 6pm – 7pm 
• Sundays – 10am – 11am 

Dancing w/Dani (non-resident): 
• Tuesday’s – 4:45pm – 6:30pm 

o Vendor is bringing in non-residents who do not have access, kids are playing and using the 
Game room for sitting services during dance classes.  Vendor is popular and it’s proposed the 
outside residents just need to sign waiver of liability and Vendor is responsible for them.   

Zumba (resident):  
• Monday’s & Wednesday’s – 10:15am 

Girl Scouts (resident): 
• Wednesday’s – 5pm – 6pm 
• Monday’s – 6pm to 8pm (resident requested to be determined for grandfathered later time by board – 

will require additional staff hours for coverage) 
 

Page 130 of 175

https://protentialsports.com/sports/


 
9 

Proposed suggestions for outside vendors:  
• Must book through Amenity Manager ONLY.  
• Completed Waiver and Rental Agreement signed; rental fee waived as service provided for Concord 

Residents, but COI/W9 must be provided as well as 10% of collected proceeds are given to Concord 
Station CDD. 

• Only Event Room is for rental; no usage of Adult Game room when vendors are on sight for kids play.  
• No solicitation out of normal cards, flyers only allowed at time of rental. 
• CDD, ACC and HOA as well as community events supersede any private and/or outside vendor event.   
• Not allowed to use Club closets for storage; liability issue.  

 
Maintenance Completed (from last meeting): 

• Hanging Branch at Milton Court 
o Completed by maintenance, cut down and discarded 

• Pool pump and seal leak found and called Sean: 
o Repaired by Sean at Suncoast Pools - completed invoice submitted 

• Garage and shed door locks replaced and secured  

• Bicycles were given notice to not chain to fence - continue to enforce 

• Playground swings were sprayed; loud and a nuisance: maintenance added DWBoost to lessen 
noise.  

• AC First Pinoy HVAC - filters replaced 2.20. (Will send additional estimate for sanitizing and cleanup 
of vents in fitness & throughout).  

• Monkey bars were secured at playground as reported by resident 

• Fitness Logic Company – called for non-operational stepper.  Vendor came 2.19 - replaced battery 
for rower; invoice submitted. 

• Repaired fountain on Lake Patience due to outage (3 times) 

• Tree Stump removed at Buckingham Shire  

• No parking Sign added at entrance & pole painted  

• Secondary Playground: 
o Resident reported drainage issue? Nothing found by maintenance 

• Tighten all chair legs and table legs (main event room).  

• Sanitized Fitness room and Clubhouse - (full Covid clean) looking to increase cleaners contract 
and/or hire housekeeper.  

• Daily Run of district (learning the land) 

• Organized garage and all contents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131 of 175



 
10 

Proposed Wish List:  

           
New Concierge Chair $100          Wall Art Event room  $159                  55” Roku TV - $300 for Watch Parties 

Page 132 of 175



EXHIBIT 18 

Page 133 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Page 134 of 175



Page 135 of 175



Page 136 of 175



Page 137 of 175



Page 138 of 175



Page 139 of 175



Page 140 of 175



EXHIBIT 19 

Page 141 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 
 
 

… Your Cleaning Company! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for 
CONCORD STATION CDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLEANING AMENITY CENTER 
PROPOSAL 

 

Your Satisfaction is Guaranteed! 
 

        Prepared by 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Catherinneprocleaners@gmail.com 
 

www.catherinneprocleaners.com 
 

FEBRUARY 27th, 2024 
 

 
         Catherinne Bustamante 
                            Owner-Manager 
 
 

                   813.838.7423 

Catherinne ProCleaners LLC 

Page 142 of 175

mailto:Catherinneprocleaners@gmail.com


   

 

ABOUT US 
 

CATHERINNE PROCLEANERS LLC is a distinguished Commercial and 

Residential Cleaning Services provider in TAMPA BAY, FLORIDA.  

Our company serves small and mid-sized offices and establishments in the 

city. Our employees are fully trained to render excellent quality work to 

address all of our clients’ cleaning needs. 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 
Our team of professional cleaners will render the following comprehensive 
cleaning services for your business. 
 
 
 RESTROOMS 

• Toilets-Urinals.    (Clean, Sanitize) 
• Sinks, Counter mirrors  (Clean, Sanitize)   
• Floors, Drains   (Sweep, Mop, Clean) 
• Walls, Partitions, Doors (Clean, Sanitize, Dust) 
• Trash     (Empty, Clean, Line) 
• Supplies    (Fill, Restock) 
• Others 

 
.  POOL AREA 

• Trash     (Empty, Clean, Line) 
• Doors/Door handles  (Clean, sanitize) 
• Pool Area            (Pick-up trash, Sweep) 
• Pool Furniture   (Clean, return to right place) 
• Fans, lights    (Clean, Dust) 
• Others 

 
 

    
 
 

Page 143 of 175



   

PRICING  
 
 

                OPTION A  Price 
Daily 

#Days  Total 

A-1    3 days per week WITHOUT     
Gym area included 

     $90  156 $14040        

A-2   3 days per week WITH Gym area 
included 

 $100 156 $15,600       

     

     

                 OPTION B  
Price 
Daily #Days  Total 

B-1    2 days per week WITHOUT Gym 
area included      $100 104 $10,400 

B-2    2 days per week WITH Gym area 
included  $110 104 11,440  

     

                                

                 OPTION C  Price 
Daily 

#Days Total 

C-1    SUMMER (MAY-NOV) 3 d/w 
WINTER (DIC-APRIL) 2 d/w WITHOUT 
GYM 

     $95 90 
44 

$12,730 

C-1    SUMMER (MAY-NOV) 3 d/w 
WINTER (DIC-APRIL) 2 d/w WITH GYM 

      $105 
90 
44 

 $14,070                        

 TOTAL  134  

     

Page 144 of 175



   

 
 

 
 

• PRESSURE WASHING AND PAVER SEALING SERVICE WILL BE BY 
REQUEST ONLY AND WILL BE A ADDITIONAL FEE PER CSERVICE. 	

• GROUT CLEANING AND SEALING SERVICE WILL BE BY REQUEST ONLY AND 
WILL BE A FEE OF $0.35 PER SF. 	

• SHAMPOO CARPET AND UPHOLSTERY CLEANING SERVICE. WILL BE 
BY REQUEST ONLY 	

• WINDOWS CLEANING SERVICE. WILL BE BY REQUEST ONLY 	

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Payment 

 
    Service costs will be calculated on a weekly basis and must be paid via 

check, payable to the company’s registered business name. An invoice 
will be provided every Thursday 

 
 
2. Term & Termination 

 
    The company will render the proposed services for a year from the date 

of commencement. The client may terminate the performance of 
services, provided that a formal written notice is submitted to the 
company. 

 
 
3. Damage & Loss 
  
    The company will be held responsible for all damages or losses incurred 

by the client if, after due investigation, it is identified that such damages 
or losses are caused by the company’s negligence. 

Page 145 of 175



   

 
 
4. Confidentiality 

 
    The contents of this proposal and all attached documents are of 

confidential nature and must not be disclosed to unauthorized third 
parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX 
 
Commercial Cleaning Services 
 
A complete and detailed list of our cleaning services, specific rates, and 

cleaning supplies 
 
 
List of Professional Cleaners 
 
Information on the employees who will be assigned to execute the services 

herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 146 of 175



EXHIBIT 20 

Page 147 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



4874-5091-5462, v. 2 Page 1 of 5 

Cleaning and Supplies Restocking Services Agreement 
 
 This Cleaning and Supplies Restocking Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 
December 15, 2023 between the Concord Station Community Development District, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “District”) and 
Emaids of Hernando & Pasco County, a fictitious name registered to do business in the State of Florida 
(the “Contractor”). 
 

Background Information: 
 

 The District owns and maintains the Concord Station Clubhouse located at 18636 Mentmore Blvd., 
Land O' Lakes, FL 34638. The District desires regular cleaning of its facilities. The Contractor represents 
that it is duly licensed in the state of Florida and qualified to perform the job duties and has any and all 
approvals and licenses as required by law to provide these services. The Contractor is familiar with the 
District’s property. In consideration of the Contractor’s agreement to perform the services described below 
and the District’s agreement to compensate the Contractor the parties desire to enter into this Agreement. 
  

Operative Provisions: 
  

1. Incorporation of Background Information. The background information stated above is true and 
correct and by this reference is incorporated as a material part of this Agreement.  
 

2. Scope of Services.  
a. The Contractor shall perform all work, including all labor, material, equipment, supplies, 

tools, supervision, services, transportation, and all other necessary incidental items required 
for the complete performance of the work described in Exhibit A attached hereto to ensure 
the facilities are in a clean, orderly, and functional condition.  

b. Service will be twice a week coordinated with the Clubhouse Manager. Contractor shall 
coordinate with the Clubhouse Manager for questions or clarifications on the scope of the 
work or any changes to the days/time.  

c. Contractor will inform the District of any supply shortages in a timely fashion.  
d. Contractor is responsible for purchasing, at its own expense, and providing all equipment and 

cleaning supplies so that Contractor can use such supplies when performing their services.  
 

3. Performance of Work. 
a. Contractor shall take precautions at all times to protect any persons and property affected by 

Contractor’s work.  
b. All work shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the 

District and shall be in accordance with industry standards and best management practices.  
c. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any work or 

services unless the District, through an authorized representative of the District, authorizes the 
Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 

4. Responsibilities of the District.  
a. The District will provide one set of keys, alarm information, and after-hours emergency 

contract information.  
b. The District will purchase and provide all restocking supplies (paper products, hand soap, and 

replacement liners for trash receptacles, etc…) so that Contractor can use such supplies when 
performing their services.  

 

Page 148 of 175



4874-5091-5462, v. 2 Page 2 of 5 

5. Compensation. The District agrees to pay to Contractor on a monthly basis in the amount $787.80 
per month. Contractor shall submit an invoice to the District after the work for that month has been 
completed. The District agrees to pay to Contractor within 30 days of receipt of the invoice from 
Contractor.  
 

6. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for 1 year from the date of this Agreement. At the 
end of the initial term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for the same term and contract 
provisions as the initial term, until terminated by either party pursuant to the termination provision 
below.   
 

7. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause with 30 days written notice 
to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment 
for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to 
whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against the Contractor. 

 
8. Additional Services. When authorized in advance in writing by the District, the Contractor may 

provide additional services beyond those listed above. The additional services and any additional 
compensation are to be agreed upon in writing prior to the work commencing and covered under a 
separate amendment, addendum, change order, or work order authorization. 

 
9. Insurance. The Contractor or any subcontractor performing the work described in this Agreement 

shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following insurance: 
a. The Contractor shall carry commercial general liability insurance of no less than $1,000,000.    
b. Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. 

 
The District, its staff, consultants, and supervisors shall be named as an additional insured. The 
Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this 
requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any change or 
termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective 
within 30 days of prior written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida. 
 

10. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the District and its officers, agents and 
employees harmless from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, demands and obligations by any 
person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or of any nature, arising out 
of, or in connection with, the work to be performed by Contractor. Obligations shall include the 
payment of all settlements, judgments, damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney’s fees and paralegal fees (whether in 
court, out of court, on appeal or in bankruptcy proceedings), as ordered. 
 

11. Limitations on Governmental Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of 
immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or 
limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for 
the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign 
Immunity or by operation of law.  
 

12. Relationship Between the Parties. It is understood that the Contractor is an independent contractor 
and shall perform the services contemplated under this Agreement. As an independent contractor, 
nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture, or employer-
employee relationship between the Contractor and the District. The Contractor shall not have the 

Page 149 of 175



4874-5091-5462, v. 2 Page 3 of 5 

right to make any contract or commitments for, or on behalf of, the District without the prior written 
approval of the District. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the payment and reporting of 
all local, state, and federal taxes and other contributions imposed or required of the Contractor during 
the performance of services to the District. 
 

13. Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal parties herein and 
no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or for the benefit of any third 
party not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall 
be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the parties hereto any right, remedy 
or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit 
of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors and 
assigns. 
 

14. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be construed, 
interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida with venue in Pasco County, 
Florida. 
 

15. Amendment. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be 
made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the parties hereto. 
 

16. Assignment. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder 
without the prior written approval of the District. Any assignment entered into without the written 
approval of the District shall be invalid and unenforceable.  
 

17. Enforcement of Agreement. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other 
party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, the right 
of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance. In the event either party is required to enforce 
this Agreement or any provision hereof by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all fees and costs incurred, including but not 
limited to reasonable attorneys' fees incurred prior to or during any litigation or other dispute 
resolution and including fees incurred in appellate proceedings.  

 
18. No Waiver. The failure of the District to enforce at any time or for any period of time any one or 

more of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed to be and shall not be a waiver of any 
such provision or provisions or of its rights thereafter to enforce each and every such provision. 

 
19. Scrutinized Companies. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, Contractor represents that in 

entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been designated as a “scrutinized company” 
under the statute and, in the event that the Contractor is designated as a “scrutinized company”, the 
Contractor shall immediately notify the District whereupon this Agreement may be terminated by the 
District. 
 

20. E-Verification. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes,  
a. Contractor represents that Contractor is eligible to contract with the District and is currently in 

compliance and will remain in compliance, for as long as it has any obligations under this 
Agreement, with all requirements of the above statute; this includes, but is not limited to, 
registering with and using the United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify 
system to verify the work authorization status of all employees hired on or after January 1, 
2021.  

b. If the District has a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 
Page 150 of 175



4874-5091-5462, v. 2 Page 4 of 5 

448.09(1), Florida Statutes, the District will terminate this Agreement as required by Section 
448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes.  

i. If the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated Section 
448.09(1), Florida Statutes, but the Contractor otherwise complied with its obligations 
thereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor and the Contractor will 
immediately terminate its contract with the subcontractor.  

c. If this Agreement is terminated in accordance with this section, then the Contractor will be 
liable for any additional costs incurred by the District. 

 
21. Public Records. As required under Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Contractor shall (a) keep and 

maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the District in order to 
perform the service, (b) provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and 
conditions that the District would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided by law, (c) ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law, (d) meet all 
requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the District all public records in 
possession of the Contractor upon termination of the Agreement and destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All 
records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with the 
information technology systems of the District. 
 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
AT 813-564-7847, BY EMAIL AT PATRICIA@BREEZEHOME.COM, OR BY 
REGULAR MAIL AT 1540 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 2000, 
LAKE MARY, FL 32746. 
 

22. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the parties as an 
arm’s length transaction. The parties participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement and 
received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision 
of this Agreement, all parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the 
doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 

 
23. Authority to Execute. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the appropriate 

body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the requirements of law, and 
each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

24. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when 
executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts together shall constitute, 
but one and the same instrument. 
 

25. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 

Page 151 of 175

mailto:PATRICIA@BREEZEHOME.COM


4874-5091-5462, v. 2 Page 5 of 5 

 
 

26. Notice. Whenever any party desires to give notice to the other parties, it must be given by written 
notice, sent by email, certified United States mail with return receipt requested, or a nationally 
recognized express transportation company to the addresses below. In the event that any party 
undergoes a change in address or contact information, notification to the other parties shall be made. 
 

To the District: 
c/o Breeze 
1540 International Parkway 
Suite 2000 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Attn: Larry Krause 
larry@breezehome.com  
 

 To the Contractor: 
7030 Eastbrook Dr 
Spring Hill, FL 34606 
contact@emaidsofspringhill.com 
 

27. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and neither party is to rely upon 
any oral representations made by the other party. To the extent that any provisions of this Agreement 
conflict with the provisions in any exhibit, the provisions in this Agreement shall control over 
provisions in any exhibit. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above. 
 
 

Emaids of Hernando & Pasco County 
 
 
 
_______________________________   
Name: _________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 

Concord Station 
Community Development District 
 
 
      
Jessica LaBarbera 
Chair of the Board of Supervisors 

 

Precilla Carpentier 

CEO

Page 152 of 175

mailto:larry@breezehome.com
mailto:contact@emaidsofspringhill.com


 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Services for Cleaning and Supplies Restocking Services 
 

4860-5624-5903, v. 1 Page 1 of 2 

All Areas:  
1. Every Visit:  

a. Secure doors 
b. Turn off lights as directed 

2. Weekly:  
a. Mop hard surface floors wall to wall 

3. Monthly:  
a. Detail corners and edges of floors 
b. Dust ceiling vents 

 
Entry, Hallways, and Lobby: 

1. Every Visit:  
a. Empty trash cans and replace liners 
b. Damp wipe with EPA approved disinfectant and all open flat surfaces 
c. Neatly arrange magazines, chairs, and tables 
d. Dust mop, vacuum or sweep hard floors 
e. Wet mop hard floors to remove spills 
f. Vacuum carpeted areas and walk off mats 
g. Remove smudges from entryway moving glass  
h. Clean and disinfect drinking fountains 

2. Weekly: 
a. Low dust all horizontal surfaces to hand height 
b. Wet mop hard surface floors 
c. Remove fingerprints from touch points 

 
Office Areas:  

1. Every Visit  
a. Empty trash cans and replace liners 
b. Dust mop, vacuum or sweep hard floors 
c. Wet mop hard floors to remove spills 
d. Vacuum carpeted areas and walk off mats 
e. Remove fingerprints from moving glass 
f. Damp wipe with EPA approved disinfectant and clean conference tables  
g. Neatly arrange conference table chairs 
h. Clean interior glass & front entry glass as needed 

2. Weekly 
a. Damp dust all open surfaces of furniture including desk-tops, furniture, window ledges, two-

drawer filing cabinets, counters and other 30" high horizontal surfaces 
b. Remove fingerprints from touch points 

3. Monthly 
a. Low dust chairs and miscellaneous items 

 
Breakrooms and Kitchen:   

1. Every Visit  
a. Empty trash cans and replace liners 
b. Wipe sinks with EPA approved disinfectant  
c. Wipe with EPA approved disinfectant and disinfect countertops and tabletops 
d. Clean inside and outside of microwaves 
e. Low dust and neatly arrange chairs 
f. Sweep or vacuum hard floors 
g. Wet mop and disinfect hard floors Page 153 of 175



Exhibit A 
Scope of Services for Cleaning and Supplies Restocking Services 

4860-5624-5903, v. 1 Page 2 of 2 

h. Vacuum carpeted areas and walk off mats
i. Remove fingerprints from moving glass

2. Weekly
a. Remove drips and spills from trash cans and cabinets
b. Dust tops of vending machines and refrigerators
c. Damp wipe with EPA approved disinfectant fronts of vending machines and refrigerators

3. Monthly
a. Low dust chairs and miscellaneous items

Restrooms: 
1. Every Visit

a. Empty trash cans and replace liners
b. Clean mirrors
c. Wipe sinks with EPA approved disinfectant
d. Wipe counters with EPA approved disinfectant
e. Wipe toilets & urinals with EPA approved disinfectant
f. Polish bright work
g. Sweep or vacuum floors
h. Wet mop and disinfect hard floors
i. Refill all dispensers (Soap, paper towel, etc.)
j. Report all items needing repaired to Clubhouse Manager
k. Remove fingerprints from touch points

2. Weekly
a. Low dust all horizontal surfaces to hand height
b. High-dust all partitions
c. Wipe dispensers with EPA approved disinfectant
d. Damp wipe tile walls behind toilets & urinals with EPA approved disinfectant
e. Wipe clean partitions with EPA approved disinfectant

Gym: 
1. Every Visit

a. Vacuum Carpets
b. Sweep floors
c. Wet mop hard floors to remove spills

2. Weekly
a. Clean mirrors and moving glass
b. Wipe down gym equipment

Janitor Closet: 
1. Every Visit

a. Keep closet cleaned and organize
b. Keep supplies organized and stored properly
c. Hang mops in proper location

Page 154 of 175



EXHIBIT 21 

Page 155 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Requested By: Larry Krause
Email: tena@breezehome.com

Tax ID: 85-8013229221C-3

Salesperson: Derek Mills

NO. Product Summary QTY UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 QTY 3  Doors  30" W x 15" H 1 $244.25 $244.25 $244.25

Subtotal: $244.25

Taxes: $0.00

Grand Total: $244.25

Deposit Required: $122.13

Bill To: Concord CDD
TBD
Tampa, FL 33647

Pickup At: FASTSIGNS of Wesley Chapel
19651 Bruce B Downs Blvd
Ste C1
Tampa, FL 33647
US

DESCRIPTION: Removal / Installation / New Door Hour Graphics / QTY 3  Doors

ESTIMATE
EST-7787

PO Number: 
Payment Terms: Cash Customerhttps://www.fastsigns.com/2160-new-tampa-wesley-ch

19651 Bruce B Downs Blvd
Ste C1
Tampa, FL 33647
(813) 575-3838

Created Date: 2/20/2024

Please NOTE:
A 50% deposit is required on all orders over $150 if credit terms have not yet 
been established for your company. Orders under $150 require full payment in 
advance.  Design proofs will only be sent after deposits are received. Most 
proofs are sent within 1-2 days after an order is placed.  A sales associate will 
make you aware if your project requires additional design time.  If you do not 
receive a proof within this time, please contact your sales representative to 
make sure we’ve sent it to the correct address. Design charges are included in 
your estimate.  Additional charges may apply if royalty-free artwork and/or 
multiple proof revisions are required during the design process.

FINE PRINT...PLEASE READ CAREFULLY: We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with outstanding signage products and 
service. This estimate is valid for 60 days from estimate date listed.  Acceptance of this FASTSIGNS of Wesley Chapel (FSWC) estimate, 

whether verbal, email or with monetary deposit, constitutes all of the following: the conversion of this estimate into an invoice 
purchase contract for exactly, and only, the custom products and services contained herein; that this contract can only be cancelled 

in writing (not email) received within 5 business days of acceptance date; purchaser agrees to forfeit all deposit money paid 
regardless of work level begun or completed at the discretion of FSWC; that any verbal discussions regarding details and/or change 

to this contract do not apply to altering this contract; that any email discussion regarding details and/or changes to this contract 
without direct FSWC written response and acknowledgment are not valid and do not apply to altering this contract. Thank you.

Signature: Date:

Generated On: 3/1/2024 4:59 PM Page  1 of 1 

Page 156 of 175



EXHIBIT 22 

Page 157 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Phone: (863) 797-7525    (863) 968-6713

   

Submitted to:

Title: Title:
Email: Email:
Phone: Fax: Phone: Fax:

Zip: Zip:

SCOPE OF WORK:

INCLUDED MATERIALS:

INCLUSIONS:

CONSIDERATIONS & EXCLUSIONS:

GRAND TOTAL:

DC INTEGRATIONS- rev 2023-06-01 Date

1- SINGLE SIDED MECHANICAL LOCK KIT . ANY AND ALL HARDWARE NEEDED . 

QUOTE INCLUDES AN INTENSE INSPECTION / TROUBLESHOOTING OF ENTIRE 

ACCESS AND CCTV EXISTING SYSTEMS . A FULL REPORT WILL BE GIVEN AS TO 

FINDINGS .

(Authorizing Officer Signature)

Customer Name:

DCI Officer:  

• Permit documents and fees are not included as specified above. Tax is excluded.

• This proposal does NOT include repairing any pre-existing troubles that may be present, including those troubles that may not be detected until proposed work is complete. (Such

trouble issues may arise from any field device, field wiring, module, panel or system connected to the panel)

• This proposal does NOT cover ancillary device connections, overtime, lifts, patching, fire caulking existing penetrations, painting, phone lines, damage by others, or additional

inspections required by AHJ.

• The customer is responsible for providing all connections to high voltage system components, and all conduit of the correct size to accommodate DCI wire fills (with pull string

installed).

• Unless instructed by writing prior to commencement of work, all parts removed from jobsite will be discarded without notice. 

• Quoted price will include materials specified, normal freight for all materials, filed notice to owner, equipment submittals, wire and device installation, final check-out and

certification, one staff training session on the systems' operation.

DATA + ACCESS CONTROL + SECURITY + INTRUSION + CCTV +

MONITORING + IT + LOCKS + GATES

DCINTEGRATIONS.NET

Date

THIS IS A BINDING CONTRACT. The person executing this Contract represents and warrants that he/she has full authority to enter into this Contract on behalf of the 

Customer. The undersigned hereby acknowledges reading, understanding, and accepting all the prices, specifications, terms and conditions set forth in this Contract, 

including those on page two of this document which are incorporated herein and by reference made a part hereof. The undersigned authorizes DCI to perform the work 

specified herein.

Signature:

DCI Sales Rep:  

(Sales Representative)

34638

INSTALL NEW SINGLE SIDED MECHANICAL LOCK ENTRY KIT WITH EGRESS . QUOTE INCLUDES ALL MODIFICATION NEEDED . THIS QUOTE ALSO INCLUDES 

INSPECTION / TROUBLESHOOTING OF THE EXISTING ACCESS AND CCTV SYSTEMS . 

Lake Mary / FL

 This proposal is valid through 3/27/2024

$1,470.00

Additional notes added at time of acceptance: 50% DEPOSIT 

DUE PRIOR TO INSTALL.

Land O Lakes / FLCity / ST 32746

Terms:
First billing will include all parts for job start-up and mobilization labor. All billing 

thereafter will be billed monthly on percent of job completed. 

• All work described in this proposal is to be performed during normal business hours unless otherwise noted.

• Customer agrees to provide uninterrupted and unhindered access to all necessary work areas during normal business hours. Any hindrance of DC Integrations (DCI) technicians

will result in additional labor charges of $85/man hour.

• DCI is not responsible for any changes the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) or customer may deem necessary. Any alteration or deviation from the original scope involving

additional costs will be executed only upon written orders. Work, including closing of the permit, will be halted until the authorization for the change order is received in writing.• DCI

will accept payments with a credit card. These are subject to a 4% processing fee.

City / ST

Concord Station CDD / Splash Pad Gate Entrance 

Attention:

Address: 1540 International Parkway #2000 Address: 18636 Mentmore Blvd 
813-565-4663813-565-4663

Concord Station CDD / Splash Pad Gate Entrance 

Michael
michael@breezehome.com

Date: 2/26/2024

Concord Station CDD

Tena Merckson

TH24226Proposal No:

Attention: Manager 
tena@breezehome.com

PROPOSAL
Job Location:

Page 158 of 175

http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/
http://www.dcintegrations.net/


DC INTEGRATIONS -  rev 2023-06-01 initials _______

C. Subscriber must inform DCI, in writing, of any change in fire rating bureau or agency. Subscriber

must also inform DCI, in writing, of any change in the list of people that DCI is to call in the event of

alarm activation. DCI is not responsible for any errors, omissions, or failure to update such list by

Subscriber.

TERMS & CONDITIONS:

______________

PAGE 2 OF 2

5. Default: A.

Event of Default. Subscriber shall be in default of this Contract if Subscriber: (a) fails to pay any

installation charge, (b) fails to pay any monitoring or service charge, (c) willfully or negligently causes

repeated false alarms, (d) cancels this Contract without cause before the end of its term, or (e) fails to

perform any other obligations under this Contract.

     B. DCI’s Remedy Upon Default.

          i. Terminate Contract. If Subscriber defaults, DCI may terminate this Contract ten (10) days after 

written notice of default if Subscriber has not cleared the default by that date.

          ii. Damages. If Subscriber defaults, Subscriber shall pay DCI any money due for any product or 

services provided prior to default. Additionally, Subscriber shall pay an amount equal to 60% of the 

remaining monitoring and or Extended Service Plan fees, plus any other damages to which DCI may be 

entitled under applicable law.

          iii. Costs. In the event either Party resorts to legal action to enforce the terms and provisions of 

this Agreement, or  as a result of  any  breach  under  this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be 

entitled to recover the costs of such action so incurred, including, without limitation, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, arbitration fees, prejudgment interest, and any other reasonable and related expenses 

of collection.

6. Changes: Any alteration or deviation from the specified work involving extra costs, will be executed

only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge. The cost of any changes to the scope of

work described herein made at the request of or made necessary or required by Subscriber's action, or

which may be required by any governmental agency or insurance interest or inspection and rating

bureaus are to be borne solely by Subscriber. SUBSCRIBER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUBSCRIBER

HAS CHOSEN THE SYSTEM AND THAT ADDITIONAL PROTECTION IS AVAILABLE AND MAY BE

OBTAINED FROM DCI AT AN ADDITIONAL COST TO SUBSCRIBER. All risk of loss or damage to the

system shall be borne exclusively by Subscriber. 7. External Services:

Any fines levied by a municipality or government agency regarding false alarms shall be the sole

responsibility of the Subscriber. Additional fees levied by monitoring agency for any reason, including

but not limited to those caused by runaway dialers, runner services, etc. shall be the sole responsibility

of Subscriber. Such fees shall be added to the service charges or billed to Subscriber directly by the

appropriate agency.8.A. Limitation of Damages (cont.) 

The payments under this Contract are based solely upon the value of the services provided and it is not

the intention of the parties that the DCI assume responsibility for any loss or damage sustained through

burglary, 

8. DCI’S LIMITS OF LIABILITY: 

A. Limitation of Damages. IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT DCI IS NOT AN INSURER

AND THAT INSURANCE, IF ANY, COVERING INJURY AND PROPERTY LOSS OR DAMAGE ON

SUBSCRIBER'S PREMISES SHALL BE OBTAINED BY THE SUBSCRIBER.                                                                                                                                                                                                               

10. Assignment: DCI shall have the right to assign this Contract without notice to Subscriber and shall

have the further right to subcontract any services which it may perform. DCI shall inform Subscriber

when services are subcontracted and shall maintain current proof of subcontractor’s state license,

general insurance, and workers compensation coverage. Subscriber acknowledges that this

Contract, and particularly those paragraphs relating to disclaimer of warranties, liquidated

damages and third party indemnification, inure to the benefit of, and are applicable to any

subcontractors employed by DCI to provide monitoring, maintenance, installation or service of the

system(s) and they bind Subscriber to said subcontractors with the same force and effect as they bind

Subscriber to DCI. 

1. Required Approval: This Contract shall not be binding upon DCI until signed by an officer of DCI. In

the event this Contract is not approved by said officer of DCI, DCI's liability shall be limited to refunding

Subscriber the amount paid, if any, upon signing this Contract.

2. Warranty:

A. Standard Warranty. DCI guarantees all material to be as specified. All work shall be completed in

a workmanlike manner according to standard industry practices. Materials & labor are warranted for 90

days from date of installation or for the term of the selected Extended Service Plan if Subscriber elects

to participate in such plan. There is no labor and material warranty on any customer provided

equipment.

B. Extended Warranty. Applicable only if specified on face of this contract and is contingent upon

DCI being contracted to provide Central Station Monitoring Services and perform all of the NFPA

mandated tests and inspections of the installed fire protection systems'.

C. All Warranty obligations exclude pre-existing to remain components, batteries, acts of God, fire,

theft, vandalism, or tampering by unauthorized personnel. All warranty's are void if any party not

authorized by DCI performs work on any item installed by DCI. 

3. Hours of Service. All work required by this Contract shall be performed between 8:00 a.m. and 4:30

p.m. on normal business days, except in the case of emergency. Service calls received after 3:30 p.m.

are subject to after-hour rates.

4. Subscriber Responsibilities: 

A. Subscriber agrees not to tamper with, remove, or otherwise interfere with the communication

software and agrees to furnish, at Subscriber’s expense, all 110 volt AC power, electrical outlets,

receptacles, and telephone hook-ups as deemed necessary by DCI for connection of the equipment.

B. Subscriber must visually inspect system components periodically and, if a problem is discovered,

notify DCI immediately. When DCI alerts Subscriber of any issue with the system that requires

correction, Subscriber assumes full responsibility for taking action to resolve the reported issue.

11. Severability: In the event any of the terms or provisions of this Contract shall be declared to be

invalid or inoperative, all of the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

12. Notices: All notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and may be served either personally or

by mail, postage prepaid to the addresses set forth in the Contract or to any other from time to time in

writing.

13. Binding Arbitration: This Contract is binding for DCI, Subscriber, successors in interest, agents,

employees, shareholders, officers, former employees, former officers, directors, subsidiaries, parent

corporations, attorneys, and all other entities acting on the their behalf. Parties agree to submit to

binding arbitration, conducted by the American Arbitration Association under the Construction Industry

Arbitration Rules, any matters which cannot otherwise be resolved, and expressly waive any and all

rights in law and equity to bringing any civil disagreement before a court of law, except that judgment

upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

14. Entire Agreement: This Contract is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement

and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms. This Contract supersedes all prior

representations, understandings or agreements of the parties. This Contract can only be modified in a

writing signed by the parties. No waiver of a breach of any term or condition of this Contract shall be

construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach.

8. A. Limitation of Damages (cont.) 

The payments under this Contract are based solely upon the value of the services provided and it is

not the intention of the parties that DCI assume responsibility for any loss or damage sustained through

burglary, theft, robbery, fire, or other cause, or that there exists or shall exist any liability on the part of

DCI by virtue of this Contract. Notwithstanding these provisions, if there should arise any liability on the

part of DCI, such liability is and shall be limited to a sum equal to the service charge for a period of six

(6) months or $500.00 whichever is less, which sum is liquidated damages and not a penalty. In the

event that Subscriber wishes DCI to assume greater liability, Subscriber may obtain from DCI a higher

limit by paying an additional amount proportioned to the responsibility and a rider shall be attached to

this Contract, setting forth the additional liability of DCI and the additional charges. However, any such

additional obligation does not make DCI an insurer.

B. Interruption of Service. DCI shall not be liable for any damage or loss sustained by Subscriber as a

result of any delay in service or installation of equipment, equipment failure, or interruption of service

due to electric failures, strikes, war, acts of God, or other causes, including MSG’s negligence in the

performance of this Contract. The estimated date that work is to be substantially completed is not a

definite completion date and time is not of the essence.

C. Disclaimer of Warranties. DCI does not represent or warrant that the system may not be

compromised or circumvented; or that the system will prevent any loss by burglary, hold-up, fire or

otherwise; or that the system will in all cases provide the protection for which it is installed or intended.

Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that DCI has made no representations or warranties, expressed

or implied, as to any matter whatsoever including without limitation the condition of equipment, its

merchantability or its fitness for any particular purpose; nor has Subscriber relied on any

representations or warranties, expressed or implied, that any affirmation of fact or promise shall not be

deemed to create an express warranty and that there are no warranties which extend beyond the face

of  this Contract;  that

DCI is not an insurer; that Subscriber assumes all risk of loss or damage to Subscribers premises or

the contents thereof; and that Subscriber has read and understands all of this Contract, particularly

paragraph eight (8) which sets forth DCI’s maximum liability in the event of any loss or damage to

Subscriber or anyone else.

9. Third Party Indemnification: In the event any person, not a party to this ontract, shall make

any claim or file any lawsuit against DCI for any reason relating to DCI's duties and obligations

pursuant to this Contract, including but not limited to the design, installation, maintenance, monitoring,

operation, or any failure of the alarm system to operate properly, Subscriber agrees to indemnify,

defend and hold DCI harmless from any and all claims and lawsuits, including the payment of all

damages,  expenses,  costs,  and  attorney's  fees  to  
the extent Subscriber agrees to indemnify, defend and hold DCI harmless from any and all claims and

lawsuits, including the payment of all damages, expenses, costs, and attorney's fees to the extent

caused by Subscriber. The parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries of this Contract.

Subscriber, for itself and any of its insurance carriers waives any right of subrogation Subscriber’s

insurance carriers may have against DCI or any of its subcontractors, subject to the advice of

Subscriber’s counsel.

Page 159 of 175



EXHIBIT 23 

Page 160 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Estimate Amount  $13,450.00

Pool Decks of Tampa
15409 Sir Maxwell Court
Odessa, FL 33556
cjturner27@icloud.com
(727) 729-2860

For: Tena Merckson
Concord Station

Job Address: 18636 Mentmore Boulevard
Land O' Lakes, FL 34638

concordstation@breezehome.com
(813) 469-1706

Last Modified: 02/28/2024

CONCORD STATION CUSTOM PAD

Job Id 2402-5371320-01  Estimate # 0111  Estimate Date 02/28/2024

# Type Name (Price / Unit) x Qty Line Total

1 LABOR Splash Pad ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Existing Cool Decking

2 LABOR Power Wash ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Power wash project surface areas only, does not include moving furniture on and off patio.  

3 LABOR Acid Etch ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Acid Etch concrete or existing surface with 25% muriatic acid and 75% water.   This process is not harmful to plants 
and does not throw off the pH balance of your pools.

4 LABOR Crack Repair ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: 2 part epoxy crack repair Surecrete Crack Repair

5 LABOR Custom Paint ($10,500.00 / Units) x
1.00

$10,500.00

 Description: Custom Paint existing pad to match existing pattern with similar colors and logos 2 coats.

6 LABOR Spray Equipment ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 

7 LABOR Metal Clean ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Etch/Prep/Clean All Metal

8 LABOR Metal Prime ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Prime Metal Equipment

9 LABOR Metal Paint ($2,950.00 / Units) x 1.00 $2,950.00

 Description: Oil based.  
Plan:  Circle rings all one color, blue, color to be determined. Outside center poles to be colored lime green, color to be 
determined.  Tops to to do color match for buckets and polka dot top.  Center pole to be colored terra cotta, color to be 
determined.  Bucket and Wave to be red and blue.  Color to be determined.  Outside pole with palm fronds to be terra cotta, 
color to be determined.  Top to be green, color to be determined.

Total $13,450.00

Page 161 of 175



Note:
Payment Terms:
25% due to schedule project and procure equipment.
25% due day of start.
25% due when spray equipment is completed.
25% due when project is completed.
Estimate good for 60 days.
Estimate 3-4 days for completion depending on weather.

Page 162 of 175



Tena Merckson/2402-5371320-01
18636 Mentmore Boulevard
Land O' Lakes, FL 34638

Pool Decks of Tampa
15409 Sir Maxwell
Court
Odessa, FL 33556
cjturner27@icloud.com
(727) 729-2860

Attached Images

cdv_photo_066.jpg

 

cdv_photo_063.jpg

cdv_photo_069.jpg

Page 163 of 175



EXHIBIT 24 

Page 164 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Estimate Amount  $8,950.00

Pool Decks of Tampa
15409 Sir Maxwell Court
Odessa, FL 33556
cjturner27@icloud.com
(727) 729-2860

For: Tena Manager
Concord Station

Job Address: 18636 Mentmore Boulevard
Land O' Lakes, FL 34638

abc125@abc.com
(813) 469-1706

Last Modified: 02/28/2024

CONCORD STATION SPLASH PAD

Job Id 2402-5371320-01  Estimate # 0110  Estimate Date 02/28/2024

# Type Name (Price / Unit) x Qty Line Total

1 LABOR Splash Pad ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Existing Cool Decking

2 LABOR Power Wash ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Power wash project surface areas only, does not include moving furniture on and off patio.  

3 LABOR Acid Etch ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Acid Etch concrete or existing surface with 25% muriatic acid and 75% water.   This process is not harmful to plants 
and does not throw off the pH balance of your pools.

4 LABOR Crack Repair ($0.00 / 1) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: 2 part epoxy crack repair Surecrete Crack Repair

5 LABOR Color Seal ($5,500.00 / 1) x 1.00 $5,500.00

 Description: H&C Heavy Shield 2 Coat Color Seal

6 LABOR Shark Grip ($500.00 / 1) x 1.00 $500.00

 Description: H&C Anti-Skid Slip resistance added to the top coat of sealer at application

7 LABOR Spray Equipment ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 

8 LABOR Metal Clean ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Etch/Prep/Clean All Metal

9 LABOR Metal Prime ($0.00 / Units) x 0.00 $0.00

 Description: Prime Metal Equipment

10 LABOR Metal Paint ($2,950.00 / Units) x 1.00 $2,950.00

 Description: Oil based.  
Plan:  Circle rings all one color, blue, color to be determined. Outside center poles to be colored lime green, color to be 
determined.  Tops to to do color match for buckets and polka dot top.  Center pole to be colored terra cotta, color to be 
determined.  Bucket and Wave to be red and blue.  Color to be determined.  Outside pole with palm fronds to be terra cotta, 
color to be determined.  Top to be green, color to be determined.

Total $8,950.00

Page 165 of 175



Note:
Payment Terms:
25% due to schedule project and procure equipment.
25% due day of start.
25% due when spray equipment is completed.
25% due when project is completed.
Estimate good for 60 days.
Estimate 3-4 days for completion depending on weather.

Page 166 of 175



Tena Manager/2402-5371320-
01
18636 Mentmore Boulevard
Land O' Lakes, FL 34638

Pool Decks of Tampa
15409 Sir Maxwell
Court
Odessa, FL 33556
cjturner27@icloud.com
(727) 729-2860

Attached Images

cdv_photo_066.jpg

 

cdv_photo_063.jpg

cdv_photo_069.jpg

Page 167 of 175



EXHIBIT 25 

Page 168 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Estimate
Date

2/21/2024

Estimate #

469

Name / Address

Concord Station CDD
3434 Colwell Ave Suite 200
Tampa, Fl. 33614

Suncoast Pool Service

P.O. Box 224
Elfers, FL 34680

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Replacement of mechanical seal 1 105.00 105.00

Replacement of EQ series pool pump seal plate 1 922.00 922.00

labor for completing work 1 125.00 125.00

$1,152.00

Page 169 of 175



EXHIBIT 26 

Page 170 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



Item Description Quantity Price Amount

T99999 Supply and install WSF model # Wods
20 beige Shower tower to
Specifications. Does not include
concrete slab. Needed for new shower
tower.

1 $7,128.35 $7,128.35

Bill to
CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRIST
5844 OLD PASCO ROAD
SUITE 100
WESLEY CHAPEL, FL 33544

Ship to
CONCORD STATION CLUBHOUSE
18636 MENTMORE BLVD
LAND O LAKES, FL 34638

Work Summary
Supply and install WSF model # words2  0 Beige Shower tower . Will need 2 trips 1 to dismantle existing unit and prepare for new
unit . Anchoring (etc) 2  people both trips . 1st 3 hrs. 2nd 10hrs . Lb 13 tp 551.98. Does not include installation of concrete slab
needed for installation of shower tower.

Quote #: q1066

Subtotal:  $7,128.35

Tax:  $0.00

Total:  $7,128.35

Payments:  $0.00

Bid is based on only what is specifically listed. 
Contractor does not provide a warranty on homeowner supplied material.
Contractor reserves the right to quote additional labor if applicable for homeowner supplied materials. 
Bid does not include permit fees of any kind unless specifically listed. 
Bid does not include any demolition and removal of debris unless specifically listed. 
Bid does not include any excavation equipment that may become necessary due to site conditions unless specifically listed. 

In exchange for the plumbing services to be rendered by The Pampering Plumber, client certifies and agrees that the plumbing
services may have risk of mold and customer expressly intends to assume the risk of damages and injury, if any, resulting from any
and all moldrelated damages resulting from the plumbing services due to plumber error. 

Item cancellation may result in a 25% restock fee. Initial ______

All change orders received prior to start the project are to be invoiced as per draw schedule.

All change orders received after starting project are to be invoiced 95% immediately upon receipt of signed change order.

A 25% nonrefundable deposit is required immediately upon acceptance of proposal. 

Draw schedule: 25% due upon acceptance, balance due upon completion.

Authorization
I hereby authorize the proposed service, repair, or
replacement and agree to pay the invoiced amount
upon completion. I additionally certify that I am fully
authorized to authorize this work and commit to
payment. Customer understands that damages may
occur in remodel installations and repairs on an
existing plumbing system and further agrees that
plumbing contractor will not be held responsible for
such damages. Customer also understands that
plumbing contractor will do their absolute best to
avoid any and all damages. Customer understands
and agrees that the plumbing contractor will not be
held liable for any consequential damages that may
occur during plumbing installations and services. In
exchange for plumbing services to be rendered by
The Pampering Plumber, company certifies and
agrees that the plumbing services may have risk of
mold and customer expressly intends to assume the
risk of damages and injury, if any, resulting from any
and all moldrelated damages resulting from the
plumbing services.

ReceiptSignature 1

Acceptance
I accept the services performed are to my
satisfaction. Warranty: All materials supplied by The
Pampering Plumber are covered by the
manufacturers written warranty. The Pampering
Plumber workmanship and labor are warranted for 90
days unless otherwise specified. Stoppages are not
warranted unless lines have been video taped in
which case they will be warranted for 90 days.
ReceiptSignature 2

THE PAMPERING PLUMBER
13128 STATE ROAD 54
ODESSA, FL 33556

Phone: (813) 9260707
Fax: (813) 9260609
INFO@PAMPERINGPLUMBER.COM
WWW.PAMPERINGPLUMBER.COM

Page 1 of 2  
Page 171 of 175



Item Description Quantity Price Amount

T99999 Supply and install WSF model # Wods
20 beige Shower tower to
Specifications. Does not include
concrete slab. Needed for new shower
tower.

1 $7,128.35 $7,128.35

Bill to
CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRIST
5844 OLD PASCO ROAD
SUITE 100
WESLEY CHAPEL, FL 33544

Ship to
CONCORD STATION CLUBHOUSE
18636 MENTMORE BLVD
LAND O LAKES, FL 34638

Work Summary
Supply and install WSF model # words2  0 Beige Shower tower . Will need 2 trips 1 to dismantle existing unit and prepare for new
unit . Anchoring (etc) 2  people both trips . 1st 3 hrs. 2nd 10hrs . Lb 13 tp 551.98. Does not include installation of concrete slab
needed for installation of shower tower.

Quote #: q1066

Subtotal:  $7,128.35

Tax:  $0.00

Total:  $7,128.35

Payments:  $0.00

Bid is based on only what is specifically listed. 
Contractor does not provide a warranty on homeowner supplied material.
Contractor reserves the right to quote additional labor if applicable for homeowner supplied materials. 
Bid does not include permit fees of any kind unless specifically listed. 
Bid does not include any demolition and removal of debris unless specifically listed. 
Bid does not include any excavation equipment that may become necessary due to site conditions unless specifically listed. 

In exchange for the plumbing services to be rendered by The Pampering Plumber, client certifies and agrees that the plumbing
services may have risk of mold and customer expressly intends to assume the risk of damages and injury, if any, resulting from any
and all moldrelated damages resulting from the plumbing services due to plumber error. 

Item cancellation may result in a 25% restock fee. Initial ______

All change orders received prior to start the project are to be invoiced as per draw schedule.

All change orders received after starting project are to be invoiced 95% immediately upon receipt of signed change order.

A 25% nonrefundable deposit is required immediately upon acceptance of proposal. 

Draw schedule: 25% due upon acceptance, balance due upon completion.

Authorization
I hereby authorize the proposed service, repair, or
replacement and agree to pay the invoiced amount
upon completion. I additionally certify that I am fully
authorized to authorize this work and commit to
payment. Customer understands that damages may
occur in remodel installations and repairs on an
existing plumbing system and further agrees that
plumbing contractor will not be held responsible for
such damages. Customer also understands that
plumbing contractor will do their absolute best to
avoid any and all damages. Customer understands
and agrees that the plumbing contractor will not be
held liable for any consequential damages that may
occur during plumbing installations and services. In
exchange for plumbing services to be rendered by
The Pampering Plumber, company certifies and
agrees that the plumbing services may have risk of
mold and customer expressly intends to assume the
risk of damages and injury, if any, resulting from any
and all moldrelated damages resulting from the
plumbing services.

ReceiptSignature 1

Acceptance
I accept the services performed are to my
satisfaction. Warranty: All materials supplied by The
Pampering Plumber are covered by the
manufacturers written warranty. The Pampering
Plumber workmanship and labor are warranted for 90
days unless otherwise specified. Stoppages are not
warranted unless lines have been video taped in
which case they will be warranted for 90 days.
ReceiptSignature 2

THE PAMPERING PLUMBER
13128 STATE ROAD 54
ODESSA, FL 33556

Phone: (813) 9260707
Fax: (813) 9260609
INFO@PAMPERINGPLUMBER.COM
WWW.PAMPERINGPLUMBER.COM

Page 2 of 2  
Page 172 of 175



EXHIBIT 27 

Page 173 of 175

LarryKrause
AGENDA



 

4868-8672-2219, v. 1 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2024-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

CONCORD STATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONFIRMING AUTHORIZATION TO PAY INVOICES FOR WORK 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED; AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR OR VICE-

CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, THE DISTRICT 

MANAGER, AND THE CLUBHOUSE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 

TIME SENSITIVE AND EMERGENCY CONTRACTS AND 

DISBURSE FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF CERTAIN EXPENSES 

WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS; PROVIDING FOR A MONETARY THRESHOLD; 

AND PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF PRIOR SPENDING 

AUTHORIZATIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Concord Station Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit 

of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes;  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 190.011(5), Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt resolutions which 

may be necessary for the conduct of District business;  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) typically meets monthly to 

conduct the business of the District, including approval of proposals, authorizing the entering into of 

agreements or contracts, and authorizing the payment of District operating and maintenance expenses;  

 

WHEREAS, the Board contracted with the District Manager to timely pay the District’s vendors 

and perform other management functions;  

 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to confirm that the District Manager is authorized to pay invoices, 

regardless of the dollar amounts, for work previously approved by the Board and such payments do not 

need to be approved by the Board prior to payment;  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that certain time sensitive or emergency issues may arise from 

time to time that require approval outside of regular monthly meetings; 

 

 WHEREAS, to conduct the business of the District in an efficient manner, recurring, non-recurring 

and other disbursements for goods and services must be processed and paid in a timely manner; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interests of the District, and is necessary 

for the efficient administration of District operations; the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within 

the District; and the preservation of District assets or facilities, to authorize limited spending authority to 

the Chair (or Vice-Chair if the Chair is unavailable) of the Board, the District Manager, and the Clubhouse 

Manager between regular monthly meetings, for work and services that are time sensitive and/or emergency 

in nature. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD: 

 

1. Authorization to Pay Invoices for Work Previously Approved. The District Manager is 

authorized to pay invoices, regardless of the dollar amounts, for work previously approved by the 

Page 174 of 175



 

4868-8672-2219, v. 1 Page 2 of 2 

Board in accordance with such contracts and such payments do not need to be approved by the 

Board prior to payment nor do they need to be re-approved by the Board at a future meeting.  

 

2. Limited Spending Authorization. The Board hereby authorizes the individuals stated below to 

exercise their judgment to enter into time sensitive and emergency contracts and disburse funds up 

to the amounts stated below, without prior Board approval for expenses (1) that are required to 

provide for the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within the District (2) for the maintenance, 

repair, or replacement of a District asset, or (3) to remedy an unforeseen disruption in services 

relating to the District’s facilities or assets, and such disruption would result in significantly higher 

expenses unless the contract is entered into immediately.  

a. The Chair (or Vice-Chair if the Chair is unavailable) may individually authorize such 

expenses up to $_______ per proposal/event.  

b. The District Manager and Chair (or Vice-Chair if the Chair is unavailable) may jointly 

authorize such expenses up to $_______ per proposal/event. 

c. The Clubhouse Manager may individually authorize such expenses up to $_______ per 

proposal/event. 

 

3. Ratification of Spending Authorization at Future Meeting. Any payment made or contract 

entered into pursuant to this Resolution shall be submitted to the Board at the next scheduled 

meeting for approval and ratification. 

 

4. Repeal of Prior Spending Authorizations. All prior spending authorizations approved by 

resolution or motion of the Board are hereby repealed.  

 

5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 

Passed and adopted on March 14, 2024. 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

      

Secretary/Assistant Secretary 

Concord Station  

Community Development District 

 

 

      

Chair of the Board of Supervisors 

 

Page 175 of 175


	1 Cover
	2 BS
	3 SRE
	4 Inv. Sum
	5 AR
	6 AP
	7 Notes
	12205 A INV Concord Station Clubhouse 9-26-23
	12205 A Concord Station Clubhouse 9-26-23
	1AR002054 FEB24
	AR005436 C00072 021324 AR002054 11,066.83 FEB24 INVOICE
	AR005436 FEB24 INVOICE
	Concord Station Contract 23-24 signed

	Pool Decks of Tampa
	For: Tena Merckson
	Attached Images
	Pool Decks of Tampa
	For: Tena Manager
	Attached Images

